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Seven Categories of Prescribed Property Management Services
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General management services

relating to a property

BFYRREEE

Facility management relating to
a property

VEPERIRIBNE IR

Management of the environment
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Human resources management
relating to personnel involved in
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Repair, maintenance and
improvement of a property
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A QR code is used as the main theme of the cover
design. It symbolises connection, search of information
and promotion, etc., illustrating that the main function of
the PMSA is to promote the industry’s development for
enhancement in both quality and professionalism. The
seven prescribed property management services (PMS)
are added to the luminous cube, representing the
diversification of PMS as well as the sustainable
development of the industry.
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We stand hand-in-
hand with the general
public and our industry
stakeholders to jointly
drive the long-term
development of our
property management

_/

services.
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Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP
Chairperson
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| am deeply honoured to present the fifth Annual Report of the
Property Management Services Authority (PMSA) as the PMSA
Chairperson and on behalf of all Members. This report summarises
our accomplishments from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 and
outlines our future plans.

Hong Kong Property Management Industry
Turned a New Leaf

As the statutory body tasked with regulating the property
management (PM) industry in Hong Kong, the principal functions
of the PMSA are to regulate PM services and promote the PM
industry’s development for enhancement in both quality and
professionalism. In the past year, |, together with all Members of
the PMSA and staff of the PMSA Executive Office, earnestly strived
to implement the licensing regime under the Property Management
Services Ordinance (Cap. 626) (PMSQO). | am pleased to report that
our efforts have borne fruit. The Property Management Services
(Licensing and Related Matters) Regulation for the implementation
of the licensing regime was submitted to the Legislative Council
in May 2020 and smoothly went through the “negative vetting”
legislative procedure. The PM industry licensing regime then came
into operation on 1 August 2020, which laid a new milestone for
the PM industry in Hong Kong and turned a new leaf.

With the implementation of the licensing regime, the PMSA issued
in the first month of the implementation the first batch of 25
formal and provisional property management practitioner (PMP)
licences. As of March 2021, the PMSA had issued more than
2,400 PMP and property management company (PMC) licences
which reflected the industry’s support for the licensing regime.
To allow the industry sufficient time to adapt, there is a three-
year transitional period under the licensing regime. PMPs with
supervisory/management responsibilities who do not meet the
criteria for academic and/or professional qualifications but possess
the specified work experience may apply for provisional licence
during the transitional period and then attend the PMSA Specified
Course (Specified Course). Upon successful completion of the
Specified Course within the validity of the provisional licence,
provisional licence holders may apply for formal licence without
attaining the academic and/or professional qualifications required
so that they could comply with the PMSO and continue to provide
PM services after the expiry of the transitional period.
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Formulating Codes/Guides to Enhance Professional
Standard

With a view to effectively regulating licensed PMCs and PMPs
in order to tie in with the operation of the licensing regime and
to enhance the professionalism of the industry, the PMSA had
commenced work and had formulated Codes of Conduct and Best
Practice Guides covering different PM areas which provided the
industry with practical guidelines for their daily operation. During
the past year, the PMSA issued three Codes of Conduct and the
related Best Practice Guides, namely, “General Code of Conduct”,
“Complaint Handling Mechanism of Property Management
Companies” as well as “Effective Control over Property Management
Business by Property Management Companies”. When formulating
the codes and guides, the PMSA consulted the industry and
owners’ organisations for widely collecting their views in order to
ensure that the codes and guidelines were comprehensive and met
the needs of the industry.
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Encouraging Course Applications and Strengthening
Work in Transitional Period

To motivate provisional licensees to apply for formal licence during
the three-year transitional period as early as possible, the four
educational institutions appointed by the PMSA launched the
Specified Courses as from October 2020. In half a year, a total
of 34 “open enrolment classes” and “corporate classes” were
successfully run, with total number of students exceeding 1,000,
thus reflecting the industry’s strong demand for the Specified
Courses and their support for the licensing regime. The PMSA had
also simplified the procedures so that provisional licensees could
conveniently apply for formal licence upon successful completion of
the Specified Courses.

Supporting Frontline Workers to Jointly Fight
Coronavirus

Hong Kong suffered from the novel coronavirus pandemic since
the early 2020, which brought unprecedented challenges to the PM
industry. PMPs stood at the forefront of fighting the virus and had to
do their utmost to enhance community and property environmental
hygiene and to ensure that various preventive measures were put
in place. Apart from a substantial increase in workload, they also
had to face huge health risks. The PMSA was commissioned by
the Home Affairs Department to implement the “Anti-epidemic
Support Scheme for Property Management Sector” (ASPM) under
the “Anti-epidemic Fund” of the Government since February 2020
in order to provide financial support to eligible properties and their
frontline PM workers (including cleansing and security workers), so
as to recognize their contributions and encourage the PM industry
to jointly fight the virus. The commitment of the ASPM was HK$1
billion.

Commissioned to implement the ASPM, the PMSA strived to carry
out various work during the anti-epidemic period including handling
enquiries, making promotion, vetting applications, disbursing
subsidies, conducting audit review, as well as attending to various
follow-up matters. To disburse the subsidies to frontline workers
and eligible properties as early as possible, the PMSA carried
out the vetting work through lenient, expeditious and simple
procedures. The ASPM was substantially completed in the fourth
quarter of 2020 with all subsidies smoothly disbursed. The PMSA
had completed the task and had exceeded the target by granting
over HK$1.1 billion subsidies, benefiting nearly 40,000 properties
and more than 160,000 frontline PM workers. | was deeply grateful
to the PMCs and owners’ organisations for their active application
for the subsidies in order to give encouragement and recognition
to the frontline PM workers for their efforts and contributions made
against the pandemic.
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Looking Ahead

The objective of the licensing regime is to promote the industry’s
development for enhancement in both quality and professionalism,
and provide the public with professional and quality PM services, as
well as enhance the professionalism and standard of the industry. |
hereby encourage PMCs and PMPs to apply for licence early, and
those PMPs holding provisional licence to complete the Specified
Courses promptly and apply for formal licence.

Meanwhile, the PMSA also welcomes the Chief Executive’s initiative
to include PM industry in the proposal of creating employment in
the Policy Address whereby PMCs are subsidised to attract young
people, especially recent graduates, to join the profession so as to
promote sustainable development of the industry.

In the coming year, the PMSA would continue to issue Codes of
Conduct and Best Practice Guides covering different PM areas so
as to promote integrity and competence of the industry through
the provision of more and comprehensive practical guidelines.
Moreover, the work on complaints against licensed PMCs and
PMPs would be strengthened so as to regulate the industry more
effectively. To further enhance the industry’s professionalism, the
PMSA would launch the “Continuing Professional Development
(CPD) Scheme” with the aim to encourage PMPs to keep abreast
of various latest developments and cultivate a CPD culture. At
the same time, publicity work to promote the professionalism and
quality of PM services would also be strengthened, and more
information about the Specified Courses would be provided to
provisional licensees so as to encourage them to successfully
complete the courses early and then apply for formal licence.

Last but not least, | wish to express my heartfelt gratitude for the full
support and invaluable opinion provided by Members of the PMSA
and the Home Affairs Department in the past year which helped
the PMSA to successfully complete various tasks notwithstanding
the unprecedented challenges it had faced. Besides, | am deeply
grateful to the Chief Executive Officer and all staff of the Executive
Office for their hard work, especially during the anti-epidemic
period. While their workload had substantially increased, they were
steadfast in supporting the PMSA to carry out its various work in
order to meet its objectives, especially with regard to ensuring the
smooth implementation of the PM industry licensing regime as well
as the successful completion of the ASPM.

Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP

Chairperson
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The property management
licensing regime has
come into operation. We
will formulate codes to
provide the industry with
practical guidelines, and
encourage continuous
development to enhance
the professionalism of the
industry.
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Alan SIU Yu-bun

Chief Executive Officer
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2020-21 was a year of challenges and opportunities. As the
advocate of the PM industry, the PMSA had actively supported
the sustainable development of the industry, notwithstanding the
impact of the epidemic. The PM industry licensing regime was
implemented as planned, which strived to drive the industry to
move forward, with enhancement in both professionalism and
quality.

Implementation of the Licensing Regime

Since the beginning of the year, the PMSA had carried out various
preparatory work for the implementation of the licensing regime,
including formulating the licence application procedures and vetting
work, and production of the PMC and PMP licences, etc. In order
to allow PMCs and PMPs to conveniently apply for licence, the
PMSA had developed an online booking service as well as an online
application platform. Applicants are able to make appointment for
licence application and submit application form online anytime and
anywhere.

Since the licensing regime came into operation on 1 August 2020,
the response from the industry had been positive. As of 31 March
2021, the PMSA received over 3,500 licence applications and
issued more than 2,400 PMC and PMP licences. The PMSA had
also published in the Gazette and its website the list of licensees for
public inspection. The register of licensees is available for access
at the PMSA website. Members of the general public can search
and check the information of licensed PMCs and PMPs under
the categories of “Licensee Name”, “Licence Status”, “Licence
Number”, “Type of Licence” and “Number of Flats for which PM
services are provided”, etc.
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Developing Codes for Enhancing Professionalism

With the implementation of the licensing regime, in order to
effectively regulate licensed PMCs and PMPs, the PMSA had
commenced carrying out work to prepare Codes of Conduct
and Best Practice Guides for providing the industry with practical
guidelines in respect of different PM areas. When preparing the
codes and guides, the PMSA consulted various stakeholders
and collected views via focus group meetings and from owners’
organisations in order to ensure that the codes and guides met the
needs of the industry.

During the past year, the PMSA issued three Codes of Conduct
and related Best Practice Guides, namely, “General Code
of Conduct”, “Complaint Handling Mechanism of Property
Management Companies” and “Effective Control over Property
Management Business by Property Management Companies”. The
PMSA would continue to issue other Codes of Conduct and Best
Practice Guides, covering different PM areas in order to provide
further guidance for the industry to follow.

Studying for Enrichment during Transitional Period

To allow the industry sufficient time to adapt, there is a three-year
transitional period under the licensing regime. To facilitate provisional
licensees to apply for formal licence in accordance with the
licensing criteria, the four educational institutions appointed by the
PMSA for the provision of the Specified Courses had commenced
provision of the courses since October 2020. The class locations
of these institutions cover Hong Kong Island, Kowloon as well
as the New Territories in order to make it convenient for the
students to select locations for attending classes. The Specified
Courses had been included in the Reimbursable Course List under
the Continuing Education Fund (CEF). Upon completion of the
Specified Courses, graduates could apply for the CEF to subsidise
the course fee.

To ensure the teaching quality of the Specified Courses, the PMSA
would deploy staff to the relevant institutions for inspection so as to
ensure that the contents of the Specified Courses provided by the
institutions tie in with the established course syllabus, and that the
institutions carried out the quality assurance measures specified
by the PMSA. As of March 2021, a total of 17 “open enrolment
classes” and 17 “corporate classes” (i.e. individual PMCs engaging
the institution directly to provide Specified Courses for their own
employees) had been launched by the four institutions. The total
number of students exceeded 1,000.
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Broad Promotion to Enhance Understanding

To enhance the understanding in respect of the licensing regime
among different stakeholders of the PM industry, and to encourage
PMCs and PMPs to apply for licence early, the PMSA had carried
out various publicity work to tie in with different milestones of the
licensing regime, including poster production, direct mailing to
PMCs and owners’ organisations in the territory for promotion,
holding meeting or video conference with different stakeholders to
explain the details of the licensing regime, direct communication
with local owners’ organisations through the assistance of various
district offices, production of television and radio promotion material
for wide broadcast, as well as timely update of the PMSA website
to disseminate the latest information about the licensing regime.

Moreover, the PMSA also used the new media for promotion and
dissemination of the latest information through different social
media platforms so as to strengthen the support and awareness of
various stakeholders in respect of the licensing regime.

Uniting the Industry to Fight Against the Virus

To tie in with the anti-epidemic work launched by the Government,
the PMSA was commissioned by the Home Affairs Department to
implement the ASPM under the “Anti-epidemic Fund” launched
by the Government which aimed at providing financial support
to frontline PM workers. The ASPM was implemented in three
phases, including “Phase I” (for private residential and commercial
cum residential buildings), “Phase II” (for private industrial and
commercial buildings) and the “Enhanced ASPM” (whereby the
subsidy period was extended and the cap on headcounts of the
subsidy for frontline PM workers was relaxed).

In the past year, the PMSA promoted the ASPM extensively so
as to encourage PMCs and owners’ organisations of eligible
properties to apply for subsidies for their frontline PM workers
early. A dedicated team was set up to deal with the applications
and disbursement of subsidies, as well as conducting audit review
and carrying out other follow-up work. The PMSA had exceeded
its target by granting over HK$1.1 billion subsidies, benefiting in
total nearly 40,000 properties and more than 160,000 frontline PM
workers.

Improving Online Experience of PMSA’s Website

To cope with PMSA'’s various work and its future development, the
PMSA’s website was revamped during the year. New design and
enhanced functions were introduced in the revamped website so as
to strengthen communication between the PMSA and the general
public, as well as enhancing user experience. The new website
was launched in December 2020, and the new domain name
“pmsa.org.hk” was activated concurrently.
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Optimising Manpower for Delivery of Functions

Implementation of the ASPM involved massive workload. Apart
from setting up a dedicated team for implementing the scheme,
the PMSA also flexibly deployed its core staff to support so that the
application vetting and subsidy disbursement work could be carried
out efficiently and frontline PM workers could be benefited as early
as possible. With the licensing regime coming into operation during
the year, the PMSA also timely deployed its core staff to handle
the work relating to licensing, follow-up of complaints, formulating
Codes of Conduct, as well as driving the roll-out of the Specified
Courses so that various statutory functions under the licensing
regime could be smoothly delivered. The PMSA rolled out the
licensing regime on the one hand, and expeditiously implemented
the ASPM on the other, which presented a substantial challenge to
the PMSA in terms of manpower deployment.

Looking Ahead

The PM industry covered many different areas of work. In the
coming year, the PMSA would strengthen the knowledge of the
industry and the public in respect of the seven categories of
prescribed PM services, and would continue to formulate Codes
of Conduct and related Best Practice Guides covering different PM
areas so as to enhance the professionalism of the industry.

As the advocate of the PM industry, the PMSA would introduce
the “CPD Scheme” to encourage practitioners to keep abreast of
the latest development of the industry as well as develop a culture
of continuous learning, so as to enhance the professionalism and
competitiveness of the industry.

Following the implementation of the licensing regime, the PMSA
would review the licence application work with a view to enhancing
the service level and improving the efficiency of the vetting work so
that PMCs and PMPs could more conveniently apply for licence.

Last but not least, | wish to express my heartfelt gratitude to the
Chairman and Members of the PMSA, the Home Affairs Department,
staff of the Executive Office as well as industry stakeholders for
their support to the development of the PM industry. The Executive
Office of the PMSA would continue to strive to promote the
sustainable development of the industry, and enhance service level
for the provision of professional and quality PM services to the
community.

Alan SIU Yu-bun

Chief Executive Officer
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FrENEER  gEys - A Tet Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
FRIBERE  emes  Avet Hon CHAN Han-pan, BBS, JP
BRI  gugs ATt Dr Jason CHAN Kai-yue, MH, JP
EEIRZt Ms CHENG Lai-king
BBERE  wumzE  ATat Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP
ERHER - pugs Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH
PUBERE  gup= Mr Scott LEUNG Man-kwong, MH
RKBEE gz Mr Paul NG Kwong-ming, MH
REELZL Ms Wendy NG Wan-yee
EEIRTE Mr lvan TAM Kwok-wing
BERLE  ygumE= Mr Stanley Lanny TAM, MH
EEHNLE  gugs Mr Justin WONG Fai-sing, MH
BERAMRZ L Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan
BESELT gumz A7at Dr Mickey YAN Wai-kiu, MH, JP
SEPEBE  SLHES  AT@+ Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP
EEBLLE g s  guEmE Mr YIP Hing-kwok, BBS, MH, JP

i(?%ﬁ:t
EEEERFIHNRRK Director of Housing or her representative
REEBEBERIHRLR Director of Home Affairs or her representative

.
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@ BEeEs wynss ATE+
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBs, JP

@ HEXHE sups ATHL
Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man,
MH, JP

@ =mELt . Apet
(RREBBEEERE)

Ms Grace LI Wai-ting, Jr

(Representative of Director of Home Affairs)

® m@Epmat
Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

® mEmx+
Ms CHENG Lai-king



®

®

©

6)

o)

KREHZL
Ms Wendy NG Wan-yee

PRIEEEE sz ATet
Hon CHAN Han-pan, BBs, Jr

RIBEE  wun=
Mr Paul NG Kwong-ming, vH

BBt EEE  wug=  ATet
Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, vH, Jp

BEETE
(REEBRAR)
Mr Ricky YEUNG Yiu-fai

(Representative of Director of Housing)

@)

&)

®

®

A

i
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SEPHE  wrnEs  ATHL
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming,
SBS, JP

BELAEM  wum=
Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, vH

@
RYERE  pugm=

Mr Scott LEUNG Man-kwong,

ATt
Mr YIP Hing-kwok, BBS, MH, JP

MH
iR B SR S 4 Mr Stanley Lanny TAM, vH

Mr lvan TAM Kwok-wing

N EERLELE  gugs
REFEL wans  Avet Mr Justin WONG Fai-sing, mH

Dr Jason CHAN Kai-yue, MH, JP

BESHELT gumz Avat
Dr Mickey YAN Wai-kiu, mH, JP
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Members

FEREE  WEAES  AT#HL
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP

/ﬁ = u?ﬂzE
Member, Legislative Council

TRERRIFNTEEEETKE)
MEEBZEGNE
RN BFE MR T
o HEEMARHAENE

s 2EIRHES
FREMSERITHEE R

EHREE%E8

e Non-Executive Director (Non-official),
Urban Renewal Authority Board
e Member, Harbourfront Commission

Member, The Standing Committee on Disciplined
Services Salaries and Conditions of Service

Member, The Court of Lingnan University

Member, The National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference

Member, The National Committee of the China
Association for Science and Technology
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\

HENHE  $BHE . ATHL W
Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP

ERETIARBEEREMERBRAYR
Professor, Department of Building and
Real Estate, The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University

s EREENEESELERIEREESEE

o FIREHE(EEYKE

s BLANHEENERZEERHERERETESZE
g%8

o WERBEERBMERRERLEEEZEGKE

c MEREBEERHEREAZES LR

s EEEEZEBCEYEEIMAZEEZEE

o i HZ B EIEARY/MAK B

o [EIE |ABEHITE IR E

,I]]]D

e Member of the Supervisory Board and
the Nominating Committee, Hong Kong Housing Society

e Member, Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings)

e Member, Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts,
Securities and Futures Commission

e Member, Estate Agents Authority and its Strategic
Development and Management Committee

e Chairman, Practice and Examination Committee,
Estate Agents Authority

e Member, Subsidised Housing Committee,
Hong Kong Housing Authority

e Member, Panel of Advisors, Land Sharing Pilot
Scheme

e Member, Task Force for the Study on Tenancy Control
of Subdivided Units



PRIEESS  ASAEE - APHL
Hon CHAN Han-pan, BBS, JP

s MAMEHEAEER
s MATFHES

s EHMERBES

e Vice Chairman, New Territories
Association of Societies

e President, Federation of New Territories
Youth

e Member, Longgang District Political
Consultative Conference

PRAEFEL  LEBBHE - APHL
Dr Jason CHAN Kai-yue, MH, J

BFT R RN AR ES R AR R L
BTIRENRRERRESBERZEREE
HRERBEREESHEREEHELZE
%8

AEMBRM L REREEKE
TR A BHR G ERIE R
B X ERBERAEKE

Member, Advisory Committee,

The Innovation and Technology Venture
Fund, Innovation and Technology Bureau
Member, Steering Committee,

Child Development Fund, Labour and
Welfare Bureau

Member, Dissemination and Promotion
Sub-Committee, Quality Education Fund,
Education Bureau

Member, Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal
Panel, Hong Kong Judiciary

Vice President, UNESCO Hong Kong
Association

Member, Entrepreneurship Committee
Advisory Group, Cyberport

W

P

18 0 I

MBI+
Ms CHENG Lai-king

BEEXWREBR AR NELAERE

gL8
TEEERRE4ETARSBERNEE
2% 8
HEEMNETHELEERRERRE
RS HBAZESEE

Member, Tai Kwun Advisory Committee,
The Jockey Club CPS Limited

Member, 14t Central and Western
District Advisory Committee,

Urban Renewal Authority

Member, Central Western, Southern and
Islands District Co-ordinating Committee
on Family and Child Welfare Services,
Social Welfare Department
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Members

BEEEE  gEHE . ATHt
Mr CHOW Lueu-kiu, MH, JP

FHERBEEERARRKEE
(BELER)

Director (Construction Culture
Implementation), New World
Construction Company Limited

e BHIEAERAE LHREES
s BERTHRERZREE
s EMTHIREE

o AMEFMITEAEHB SIS S
s ERREXATRHER

» BEXBERES
s THERZRHEXRE

s BEMBMBAARBTEEER

%8
=
=

2G5

e Member, Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Appeal Board
e Member, Election Committee

W

iR R L ESRAE

e Member, Guangzhou Municipality Political

Consultative Conference

e Honourary Founding President, Registered

Specialist Trade Contractors Federation

e Consultant, Hong Kong Construction
Industry Employees General Union

e Director and Treasurer, Construction
Charity Fund Integrated Service Centre

e Member, HKFTU Occupational Safety and

Health Association

e Chairman, Hong Kong Construction Site

Miscellaneous Workers Union
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BELBRRG  LEHE
Sr Dick KWOK
Ngok-chung, MH

EENEMESHER

T RIERANEERKE
MEEBITHEIEIIGRNEERZE
B EEHEEE
THLEHREZEERZE
BEAFEEHEZLE

Past President, The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors

Member, Land and Development
Advisory Committee

Member, Industry Training Advisory
Committee — Property Management
Lay Member, Solicitors Disciplinary
Tribunal Panel

Panel Member, Administrative Appeals
Board

Member, Hong Kong Housing Society

RPUERE  gEH= \W
Mr Scott LEUNG
Man-kwong, MH

BEXHEREA
Political Party Branch Coordinator

AEAEEZERANERE/MEEZEELE
FEFEHE (REYKE
FH/E(BERIZE R TEYR)KE

ETi@HﬁP EfER

EBgaEF

Member, Subsidised Housing Committee,
Hong Kong Housing Authority

Member, Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings)
Member, Panel of Adjudicators (Control of
Obscene and Indecent Articles)

Deputy Secretary, Kowloon Federation of
Associations

Vice-Chairman, Federation of Public Housing
Estates



RABEE . e
Mr Paul NG Kwong-ming, MH

ENREBBERAT,
ENNEERERADHELEE

Assistant General Manager,
F.H. Security Services Co., Ltd./

Fidelity Property Management Ltd.

FELEEMEERAEE
REREERESETAD G LR
MEERTERIEREZESERE
EEBEIRYEEERRL MR

Past Chairman, Housing Managers
Registration Board

Past Chairman, Chartered Institute of
Housing Asian Pacific Branch

Member, Industry Training Advisory
Committee — Property Management
Technical Advisor, Property Management
and Security, Employees Retraining Board

KREFRL
Ms Wendy NG Wan-yee

W

/i

Accountant

EEREE
Mr lvan TAM Kwok-wing

W

HIEREEERA PRI ESARE
Deputy Managing Director,
Chevalier International Holdings
Limited

KEHAEZESES
HEEAEE R
EERBEBE2E)
—RRBRESERF
EERTHEATIIER

EAVMEERARBEIERNMES

Member, Advisory Committee on

Water Supplies

Member, Steering Committee on

the Promotion of Electric Vehicles
Member, Governing Committee and
Chairman, General Insurance Council,
The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
Past President, The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries

Past President and Council Member,
The Hong Kong Association of Property
Management Companies
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Members

EEELE  gEnE
Mr Stanley Lanny TAM, MH

st T

Registered Social Worker
o ) KREBISERZEGHINEHES
=EES

e Vice Chairman, External Affairs

Committee, The Board of Management
of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries
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W

BERERLLE  wpEn=
Mr Justin WONG Fai-sing, MH

W

BWEIPOERARNESHALE
General Manager, Lion Training
Centre Limited

]

s MEEBITEBIHAZESE
ey vt S
EERBREBPFRAHBESHEER
EHOBRBHEERERE R

MR e B e

\

Member, Industry Training Advisory
Committee — Property Management

District Liaison Officer, Auxiliary Medical
Service

Assistant Director, Hong Kong Road
Safety Patrol Public Relationship Section

Corp President, St. John Ambulance

Brigade — Island East Corp Hong Kong
Command

e Commissioner, Community Emergency

Aid Team

EERZ L
Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

e

Solicitor

RBEHGRHETE
TRRMERE LA
S e S
TREEFEALEABEER
HEIKE

BBEZEEKE
%8
IR

AR AR

Chairman on rotation basis, Transport
Tribunal
Member, Standing Committee on
Compliance, The Law Society of Hong
Kong

Member, Consents Committee, The
Law Society of Hong Kong

Member, Disciplinary Tribunal Panel,
The Association of China-Appointed
Attesting Officers Limited



HESTHEL %B8HE . ATHL \)
Dr Mickey YAN Wai-Kiu,
MH, JP

MERBREERATNESHLE
Managing Director, Li Hing
Environmental Services
Company Limited

EEMERBHBEERE
s BRESEERE
s NRBBEEEREE

e Chairman, Hong Kong Property Services
Alliance

e Chairman, VQ Foundation

e Member, Committee on the Promotion of
Civic Education

SEPEE  REFAEE > AP

Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming,
SBS, JP

MEEERE
Member, Legislative Council

o 2EIKIHES

s BUEREHRIBIRFZEGRTRE
s HEMSERREEEKE

s BEBELBHRKE

s BEMRERBAKE

e Member, The National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference

e Vice-chairman, Independent Police
Complaints Council

e Member, Hong Kong Airport Authority
Board

* Member, Hong Kong Maritime and Port
Board

e Member, Hong Kong Logistics
Development Council

HEEELE  HEAEE
BERT . KFEHL

Mr YIP Hing-kwok,
BBS, MH, JP

NEES
Company Director

HREBEEEZEEZXE
BRESHAZEERE
HWmEREYRE R NMER
AANERETZERLE
BREFERNIEI070REE
BEeg

BMETSNE

Member, Food Wise Hong Kong Steering
Committee

Member, Advisory Committee on
Recycling Fund

Member, Municipal Solid Waste
Charging Support Group

Chairman, Amoy Gardens Owners
Committee

Chairman, 1070t East Kowloon Group,
The Scout Association of Hong Kong
President, Association of District
Ambassador

School Manager, Maryknoll

Secondary School
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EFRFLt xv#mt w WINELZ L AF#ML

Miss Agnes WONG Tin-yu, JP Miss Janice TSE Siu-wa, JP
FEEER RBEKEEER

Director of Housing Director of Home Affairs
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Corporate Governance

EERERE(YE R )EC LKA E#
B BAREEEERHEMERBNAR
RUEBNESHXRERCERNEL
ERMERNEATEEHRE  EERES
BRI MAT - EEREAMEXMRAE
MEARE IR R AR ERE - SRR
MEEREXEHAERECRERH
R’ STREHRESEENYE R -

RETHEHBEMS @ EERETRIFOE
BERIEE RS AR LFNEND
L - (MEBRIDYEE RNEETRRE
3 - BEE R INAELE - BRI R
FYEDRRCR - WERMEERA - 2FEER
R—RAKEBHEZEES - TRTAIR
HWREERL T

EERKE

EERKNERBBFITHEITHREER
BMEKRPDNZT  F_[EKETHH
2019F 12 A1HREN - BHEI=F - &%
BRELXEI19ZKE @ BIEEEREEIER
BE—Z EERKEZREAFNSAENUNT=
&8R! :

E£—%E5
Category |

s=85
Category Il

The PMSA is a statutory body established under the PMSO and
is tasked to regulate the provision of PM services by companies
and practitioners in Hong Kong, and to promote professional
development of the industry. As the statutory regulatory body for
the industry, the PMSA encourages and assists the PM industry
and its practitioners to strive for enhancement in quality and
professionalism through formulating and implementing a licensing
regime and other complementary measures which tie in with the
situation in Hong Kong, with a view to providing quality PM services
to the community.

The PMSA is committed to adopting a high standard of corporate
governance in carrying out its work so as to meet the expectations
of the public and its stakeholders. It works in accordance with the
PMSO which sets out the regulatory provisions on its operation,
and endeavours to enhance the effectiveness of its governance
by adopting appropriate principles, including the adoption of
various monitoring mechanisms, codes of conduct and corporate
governance arrangements applicable to public bodies.

Members of the PMSA

Members of the PMSA are appointed by the Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in accordance with the
PMSO. The second term ran from 1 December 2019 for a period of
three years, which comprises 19 Members, including a Chairperson
and a Vice-Chairperson. Members of the PMSA, according to
the sectors they belong to, are divided into the following three
categories:

REMERBHEA -

Individuals who are engaged in property management services.

TEE-—EANEA YERAGEWRER  —ROTBRIVEEESHEIEHN
KR METBRRERJEBYWERBHAR -

Individuals, not being Category | persons, who, because of their experience in
property management, general administration or consumer affairs, appear to
the Chief Executive to have knowledge of property management services.

E=ER

Category llI

K& °

TEE-EREF_FFINEA  METRRERAESEZIAEER

Individuals, not being Category | or Category Il persons, who appear to the
Chief Executive to be suitable to be appointed as Members of the PMSA.
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EBREITA TR EGRDDAAEI AN
et BREETITBRHAIIE - AREE
PREERRE °

EERMNEREATEBELT

Members of the PMSA come from different background with
diverse expertise and are experienced in community service. They
have provided the PMSA with independent and objective advice on
various aspects of its operation. The membership list of the PMSA is
at page 15.

The PMSA executes the functions below as stipulated in the
PMSO. It oversees the work of its Executive Office and approves all
major decisions.

The principal statutory functions of the PMSA are:

EREMTYELARYEAN  RRUYMERBIELRE
To regulate and control the provision of property management services by the
licensing of PMCs and PMPs

EBYERTERE  WIRSEFHEEIRKT

To promote the integrity, competence and professionalism of the profession of
property management services

services

ZEE

EERRITHEAZES  HHREEE
EMTENETHERE SZBgARR
T ERRBREIEEE £8
SXRLATENMMEASEABREERKE L
T-BZEGREBETHITENMERFEAR
BHEH  SREERMNBEETE TIEs
g WiIZABIFRSIEIE -

HEFNEANE RNE R

To maintain and enhance the status of the profession of property management

Committees

The PMSA has established five Committees to assist in handling
its heavy work schedule and discharging its functions. Each
Committee may set up dedicated Working Group(s) to address
particular issues. Chairpersons of Committees and Convenors of
the Working Groups are Members of the PMSA. The Committees
and their Working Groups conducted meetings during the year to
draw up work plans for the functions of the PMSA, and to roll out
various programmes in accordance with their scheduled work plan.
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PMSA SERVICES AUTHORITY

B RRTEE
Professional
Deévelsprent
committee )

S
BHRZETR
Finante and Strategic
Developrment
committee

28 MEEBEEER | 202021 BERE



LEEEE

FEREE -
WEZEeFZaHERE(WEKRI) TR
BEH - ZESUNAETERAGENE
MTEERAEBENENRIELHERE
BEEMmS  ZEENeHFIES KE
FriEREELEFRRN—BERAF
M WIBEBEX A AN TE N ERNIRF
ENHEMEES - USIESBFTER « (32
SPSFRIDS EHAIES] ©

X & Chairperson

BT

Disciplinary Committee
Major Functions:

This Committee is primarily responsible for handling disciplinary
matters referred to in the PMSO. It will conduct such hearings
as it may think fit, exercise such powers and make such orders
as it considers appropriate. It will also draw up guidelines and
procedures to ensure consistency and fairness in handling
disciplinary cases, and refer cases of malpractice or complaints to
other committees for formulation or revision of policies, Codes of
Conduct or other guidelines.

KE
Members

(pxEss  wuns
Mr Scott LEUNG Man-kwong, MH

( mgssns  wugs
Mr Paul NG Kwong-ming, MH

(mmEx+
Ms Wendy NG Wan-yee

(mmgrs
Mr Ivan TAM Kwok-wing

Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

(maers sans
Mr Stanley TAM Lanny, MH

(maEEt suHs  ATEL
Dr Mickey YAN Wai-kiu, MH, JP

(SEESE  REHEE - ATEL
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP

(®EELLE  AEHES  LEFE . AT+
Mr YIP Hing-kwok, BBS, MH, JP

([ REEBABBESLAAS

Director of Home Affairs or her representative
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BBRERBEREES

FERE
HZEETZAANAREFENKBSE
BHALRVRBESRR MEERRELRE
# o ZEENTAEWMPEEREEANE
REE - A RRE Mz ERSIRE - BE
£EH  ANMKEMANERBEE RAEFH
HETEE - HEEERKLNY  ZEE
REREVREEERNERERSEE
BRAREHE NS REERE(DE R
THYATEREE

X /& Chairperson

HEERES
WENES - AFEtL

Finance and Strategic Development Committee
Major Functions:

This Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the PMSA on strategic issues of long term significance and
budgetary matters. It is also responsible for assisting the PMSA to
oversee human resources management and to review and approve
establishment structure, re-organisation, manpower planning and
development of human resources policies and procedures. At
the early stage of the establishment of the PMSA, the Committee
was authorised to handle and make decisions on the operational
matters of the PMSA, which did not involve statutory functions of
the PMSA under the PMSO.

K&
Members

(Tt  SEHS  ATE+
Dr Jason CHAN Kai-yue, MH, JP

( EmEEL  AEETE A T4L
Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

( mERNRE  LEHs
Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH

(mmEzt
Ms Wendy NG Wan-yee

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen,
BBS, JP
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(mmsrs
Mr Ivan TAM Kwok-wing

(mamss pugs
Mr Stanley TAM Lanny, MH

(BEWEE  REAEE  ATEL
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP

( REEAE  FEAES  BERS AT+
Mr YIP Hing-kwok, BBS, MH, JP

(REEBABBESAAS

Director of Home Affairs or her representative




EREES Licensing Committee
FEREE Major Functions:

HEEeasTENMRITKYEIEDIYES ~  This Committee is tasked to exercise and execute any functions
9 10R111& - AR R4095 1 R21&F  and powers of the PMSA set out in sections 8, 9, 10 and 11 of and
JIEHESE B BeeMiEH - ZEE  sections 1 and 2 of Schedule 4 to the PMSO. It helps in designing
SERHARE REYE BB EZER - and reviewing application forms, licences, PMP card, the register
FRER W A [BEM I REMAEREE  and other relevant licence documents. Furthermore, it will also
B HE - o ZE@ et ®E  review licensing criteria, application and licence fees, as well as
Al - AFEBRMNBEE - UNEEIETMETA  formulate and review policies relevant to licensing matters, and
FEEIBE BN - WREEEBIZHESE o make recommendations to the PMSA thereon.

K&
Members

(RERBE  FEHES  ATML
Hon CHAN Han-pan, BBS, JP

(BTt SETE . ATEL
Dr Jason CHAN Kai-yue, MH, JP

\ _ (" wEmxt
X & Chairperson Ms CHENG Lai-king

( EmEsE  BERS AT+
%’F%‘i%@?\ Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

KREBE - AFHL

Professor Eddie HUI (mxshsns  sEps
Chi-man, MH, JP Mr Paul NG Kwong-ming, MH

(mmmss  SBss
Mr Justin WONG Fai-sing, MH

(meEmE+ SBHS  ATEL
Dr Mickey YAN Wai-kiu, MH, JP

(REEGE  FEAEE KRGS AT+
Mr YIP Hing-kwok, BBS, MH, JP

(REEBABBESAAS

Director of Home Affairs or her representative
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EE£REREZES Practice and Assessment Committee
FEREE - Maijor Functions:

1t|:§E\@EETﬁﬁﬂﬁkr@%%llmfﬂﬁﬁ@% This Committee is responsible for assisting the PMSA to draw

SFRIDRCRIFIESEIERE)Y » D RIFEEWE A  up and review the Codes of Conduct and the Best Practice

TN EMREENEERTRIEEXHR o Guides governing the conduct and practice of PMCs and PMPs

NEETTERER  ZESSHBEER  respectively. Where a qualifying assessment is required, the

ST AR R AR TEZ TIE © Committee will assist the PMSA to set the parameters of and
administer the qualifying assessment.

&

Members

( wEmat
Ms CHENG Lai-king

(SrEwsE  S8BE  ATEL
Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP

X & Chairperson ( pEsuRs - 2ens
Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH

(mmmss  mEHE
Mr Justin WONG Fai-sing, MH

BisR T

Mr Ivan TAM Kwok-wing (" mREfRL+
Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

((meEmE+ 485D ATEL
Dr Mickey YAN Wai-kiu, MH, JP

(EREEESEAL

Director of Housing or her representative

(REEBREBESAAS

Director of Home Affairs or her representative
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Professional Development Committee
Major Functions:

In order to enhance professionalism of the PM industry, this
Committee plays an important role in liaising with the industry to
explore ways to improve the standard of practice and the quality
of service. It will also liaise with local tertiary institutions in providing
training to practitioners and is responsible for driving continuing
professional development work.

K&
Members

(RERBE  FEHES  ATML
Hon CHAN Han-pan, BBS, JP

(BTt SETE . ATEL
Dr Jason CHAN Kai-yue, MH, JP

( mERNRE  LEHs
Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH

(pxmss  wEpE
Mr Scott LEUNG Man-kwong, MH

Professor Eddie HUI
Chi-man, MH, JP

(ks weps
Mr Paul NG Kwong-ming, MH

(®EmsL  SBss
Mr Justin WONG Fai-sing, MH

( mEmL+
Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

(EREEESHAE

Director of Housing or her representative

([ REEBABBESAAS

Director of Home Affairs or her representative
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Executive Office

The PMSA Executive Office assists and supports the PMSA in
discharging its PM regulatory duties, promoting industry edges,
boosting the development of professionalism in the industry as
well as performing day-to-day work of various aspects. It is led by
the Chief Executive Officer, who is underpinned by two General
Managers responsible for the “Regulatory” and “Operation and
Service” branches respectively. The Complaints and Enforcement
Division, Legal Affairs Division, Licensing Division, and Regulatory
and Disciplinary Division are under the “Regulatory” branch; while
the Administration Division (responsible for the PMSA Secretariat,
Human Resources, Finance, and Administration functions),
the Corporate Services Division (responsible for Corporate
Communications and Information Technology functions), and the
Professional Development Division are under the “Operation and
Service” branch. As of March 2021, the PMSA Executive Office had
30 staff.

Financial Highlights

The PMSA is a self-financing statutory body. Its income is mainly
generated from two sources, namely, levy and licence fees. The
levy is collected in accordance with the PMSO and the Property
Management Services (Levy) Regulation (Cap. 626A) (the Levy
Regulation) under the PMSO. As the PM industry licensing regime
came into operation on 1 August 2020, in addition to levy, licence
fees had become another source of income of the PMSA.

Moreover, the PMSA was commissioned by the Home Affairs
Department during the year to implement the ASPM under the
“Anti-epidemic Fund” set up by the Government. The concerned
allocation/administrative fee had been fully utilised for meeting the
direct and other relevant costs incurred for the ASPM.

The total income and expenditure of the PMSA for the year were
HK$45.87 million and HK$40.46 million respectively. This resulted
in a surplus of HK$5.41 million. Staff costs, office accommodation
and related costs of HK$33.62 million accounted for 83% of the
total expenditure.
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In its initial setup stage, the PMSA had applied for a loan of HK$22
million from the Government Loan Fund. The relevant interest
expense paid for this year was HK$0.24 million. With the approval
of the Government, the PMSA was allowed to defer its loan
repayment for three years. The first repayment of HK$4.4 million
was deferred from 1 April 2020 to 1 April 2023.

The PMSA has to prepare financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with the accounting standards, financial
reporting standards and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The aforesaid financial
statements are audited by an external auditor appointed by the
PMSA. Patrick Wong C.P.A. Limited was appointed by the PMSA as
the external auditor to provide audit services for the financial year
2020-21.

Review of major work in 2020-2021
Levy Collection

The Levy Regulation was implemented with effect from 1 July
2018. The PMSA collects levy from transferees in respect of
conveyance on sale of immovable properties (both residential and
non-residential) in Hong Kong which are chargeable with stamp
duty as defined under head 1(1) in the First Schedule to the Stamp
Duty Ordinance (Cap. 117). The amount of levy payable for each
leviable instrument is HK$350.

As of 31 March 2021, the PMSA had received a total levy income
of HK$33.2 million from around 95,000 transactions. According to
sections 57 and 58 of the PMSQO, late payment or non-payment
of levy is subject to a penalty, the amount of which ranges from 2
to 10 times of the amount of the levy, depending on the duration
of delay. There were 189 cases of outstanding or late payment
handled during the year, involving a total penalty of HK$0.23
million, which represented a 33% increase over last year.

Licence Fees

The PM industry licensing regime came into operation on 1 August
2020. In accordance with the Property Management Services
(Licensing and Related Matters) Regulation (Cap. 626B), PMCs and
PMPs are required to pay a licence fee to the PMSA for licence
application. As at 31 March 2021, 3,562 applications were received
and a total of 2,440 PMP and PMC licences were issued. A total of
HK$7.54 million from application and licence fees was received.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 | PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES AUTHORITY 35



KEER

Corporate Governance

BIEFIE
B EHE

EERERYEXNEZTHIE  ABBY
FAIRHIT—EEABEME X MRS
RESERBBRERE  LETREY
ERBNEBTEREELERAOBRE -
EERBEAEEHITMEEZENBELNE
TSR HENWEED — (S
ARG (B W2 R ARRE = H ) #R A1 ) 20204 7
AT 5E]S ~ 5FH MDA P E
SBA - MEEZEHEIEFIZTERR
FSHIBMERETM °

FIRT R K EEER
EERRABENENER - HI5] 74
FAOBEKELEERE BREEREFRE

Fr BHBERNRE - BRAMRRBH
BHHRRERRF UL AR RS
UERBEBHEBEFTLE - BT RCHARMS

EHRORFERBEFFE  BEREBEFZAR

BRMERXBHFRSE - BMEXIFHEmMA
RIEMEE  SERIDAIEEGRIEMHE

BN IRE AR

RTRERBFBEAHEBREFMEBEE
HRLHNER  BRERE ARSI K
SRRBFANER - UMEHBEHEL
E S — PRI R M E R E X -

(R EREE ]

BEMEAN(FE1) R ES —FE£ER] -
EERBEABREEERRIUNMESE
BEAAEXER((RUEXERRE]MNIETE
g5 o WA%&H—ﬁﬂmeﬁgﬁT
FEXEERMNRARAG - Bl2202143 A
318 - ﬁAME%@EW&@WﬁW”
ﬁ?TE%I °

30 VEBEEEER | 202021 BERE

Licensing Regime
Implementation of the Licensing Regime

As the statutory body of the PM industry, the PMSA is tasked
to formulate and implement the licensing system and related
complementary measures specifically designed for the PM industry
in Hong Kong in order to regulate the provision of PM services and
promote the professional development of the industry. The PMSA
had conducted various consultations earlier to prepare for the
implementation of the licensing regime for the industry. The related
subsidiary legislation, the Property Management Services (Licensing
and Related Matters) Regulation, was passed in July 2020 after the
completion of the “negative vetting” legislative procedures, and the
licensing regime for the industry successfully came into operation
on 1 August of the same year as scheduled.

Formulation of Policies and Complementary Measures

In order to support the implementation of the licensing regime,
the PMSA had formulated relevant policies and complementary
measures including licence application procedures, vetting
policies and workflow, application notes and forms, procedures
for issuing licences, and establishing an information technology
system to process licence applications. The PMSA had set up an
online booking system and application platform to facilitate licence
applicants to submit application forms conveniently, and this had
allowed the PMSA to maintain normal service for licence application
notwithstanding the COVID-19 pandemic.

To seek the views of the licence applicants on the application
procedures and complementary measures, the PMSA collected
their opinions through questionnaire survey so as to make
appropriate optimisation measures to further enhance efficiency
and improve service quality.

Recognized Professional Bodies

One of the criteria for holding a PMP (Tier 1) licence is that a
licensee has to hold a specified membership of a professional
body recognized by the PMSA (RPB). The PMSA had examined
the applications for recognition submitted by different professional
bodies according to the same criteria. As of 31 March 2021, a
total of six professional bodies had been accepted as RPBs by the
PMSA.
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Specified Academic Qualification in Property Management

According to the criteria for holding a PMP licence, licensees
have to possess academic qualification specified by the PMSA. In
respect of the academic qualifications related to PM, the PMSA
had formulated relevant assessment criteria during the year. Any
organisation or educational institution wishing to have its academic
curriculum recognized as specified academic qualification for
PMP licences may submit application to the PMSA. As of 31
March 2021, a total of 51 academic qualifications relating to
PM had been recognized as specified academic qualification.

Overview of Licence Application

As of 31 March 2021, the PMSA had received 3,562 applications
and issued a total of 2,440 PMP and PMC licences. The register
containing information of the licensees (including holders of PMC
licences and PMP licences) had been uploaded to the website of
the PMSA, and the list of licensees had also been published in the
Gazette pursuant to the requirements of the PMSO.

The industry had responded positively since the implementation
of the licensing regime. To encourage PMCs and practitioners to
make early application for licence, the PMSA during the pandemic
continued to communicate (through video conferences, etc.) with
various stakeholders including real estate developers, PMCs,
PMPs, professional bodies, owners’ organisations and district
bodies to explain the details of the licensing regime and address
related enquiries. Within the year, the PMSA had held 70 briefing
sessions or meetings to explain the details of the licensing regime.

List of Licensees

Pursuant to section 12(1) of and section 4(a) of Schedule 4 to
the PMSQO, the PMSA has to, from time to time, publish a list of
the licensees (including their names and licence numbers) in the
Gazette.

FERAEE % FIsE A &
Number of Licensees x Gazettal Date
811 2020411 A13H
13 November 2020
202142 A19H
1,851 19 February 2021
2775 202185 A21H

21 May 2021

Online Register

Pursuant to section 13 of the PMSO, the PMSA has to keep a
register of the licensees. The PMSA had set up a register on its
website, and the online platform was equipped with search and
sorting functions to provide the public with a convenient way to
verify the information of the licensees.
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Survey Results of the Licence Applicants on Licence Application Procedure

(202058 A1 B E20214E3A31H)
(1 August 2020 to 31 March 2021)

FERE A=
Strongly agree Agree

iE A
Not applicable

WEFEHTFABHES A
Easy to use the online
booking system

54% (296)
39% (212)
5% (26)
1% (3)
0% (1)
1% (6)

HERKRZNER
Easy to fill out the
application form

36% (195)
47% (258)
14% (77)
2% (10)
0% (0)
1% (4)

HERFEEREERRE
The overall counter service
was satisfactory

529% (281)
38% (204)
7% (39)
1% (4)
0% (1)
2% (15)
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fe A TEESFEIAE
Fair Strongly disagree or Disagree

BRERRIREER

Blank or no comment

ETHBETRIETEM
The instructions on how to use
the online platform were clear

33% (179)
39% (212)
11% (61)
2% (12)
2% (13)
13% (67)

REENRFEABREN

The information about licensing in the
website was clear and sufficient

40% (217)
48% (260)
9% (54)
2% (10)
0% (0)
1% (3)

HRFEEFERAS
The overall application
process was satisfactory

41% (223)
38% (209)
15% (83)
4% (20)
0% (0)
2% (9)
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Professional Development

Over the past year, the PMSA had made substantial efforts to
promote the continuous professional development of the industry
and encourage the growth of a learning culture. The PMSA
Specified Courses were successfully launched and the PMSA
also started planning the “CPD Scheme” to equip licensees with
updated knowledge and skills so as to strive systematically for
enhancement in both quality and professionalism.

PMSA Specified Courses

To allow the industry sufficient time to adapt, the licensing regime
has a three-year transitional period (from 1 August 2020 to 31
July 2023). During the transitional period, PMCs and PMPs may
choose, but are not required, to be licensed. PMPs who do
not meet the relevant criteria for academic and/or professional
qualifications but possess the specified PM work experience for
managerial or supervisory role in the provision of PM services to
properties located in Hong Kong may apply for a provisional licence
first and attend a Specified Course. Upon successful completion
of the Specified Course within the validity of the provisional licence,
they may apply for formal PMP licence.

In early 2020, the PMSA appointed four institutions to provide the
Specified Courses, including Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education, Vocational Training Council, Li Ka Shing School
of Professional and Continuing Education, Open University of
Hong Kong, School of Continuing and Professional Education,
City University of Hong Kong as well as School of Professional
Education and Executive Development, Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. The Specified Courses were pitched at Qualifications
Framework (QF) Level 4 and had been included in the List of
Continuing Education Fund (CEF) reimbursable courses. Students
could apply for CEF subsidies after completing the study of the
Specified Courses. To make it convenient for students to attend
classes, the Specified Courses were delivered by the institutions at
locations covering the Hong Kong Island, Kowloon as well as the
New Territories.

The four institutions commenced providing the Specified Courses
as from October 2020. As at 31 March 2021, the first and second
batch of the Specified Courses had been run, providing a total
of 17 “open enrolment classes” and 17 “corporate classes”
(i.e. individual PMCs engaging the institution directly to provide
Specified Courses for their own employees), offering 1,074 seats to
cater for the demand for Specified Courses in the market.
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EARERERR (B E£2021F3H310)
Enrolment Status of Specified Courses (as at 31 March 2021)

F
fiﬂi o O o

T TR

E1HIRRIZ (2020510 A1 B £ 12 A31 B #iRIFIRR) VERIEH BEYE

1st Intake (classes commenced from 1 October to No. of Classes No. of Students
31 December 2020)

ERARE (1)

Specified Course (Tier 1) 11 431
FERARTZ (3B24R) 3 102

Specified Course (Tier 2)

Sub-tetu 14 533

FoHARRZ (2021451 A1 B =4 A30H HARIFHE)

2nd Intake (classes commenced from 1 January to HLAIBE BEHA
30 April 2021) No. of Classes No. of Students
EARE(E1R)
Specified Course (Tier 1) 13 406
5 RRAE (55240
7 135

Specified Course (Tier 2)

Sub-tetu 20 541
o 34 1,074

RARENESNATTZEEHE (B £2021563A31R0)
Cumulative Number of Students by Course Types (as at 31 March 2021)

BEEgH
No. of Students

I ERARE (140
Specified Course (Tier 1)

I FERERAE (24
Specified Course (Tier 2)

837 (78%)
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Cumulative Number of Classes and Students by Enrolment Methods (as at 31 March 2021)
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No. of Classes No. of Students
XS AHBE EEI AERE
Corporate Open Enrolment Corporate Open Enrolment
Classes Classes Classes Classes
FERARE(E1R)
Specified Course (Tier 1) 13 11 427 410
FEIARIE(F24)
Specified Course (Tier 2) 4 6 96 141
Total 17 17 523 551
FESXRRES Continuing Professional Development Scheme
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To enhance the professionalism of PM services, the PMSA is keen
to develop a culture of continuing education by introducing the
CPD scheme. Within the year, the PMSA conducted research in the
CPD schemes of the RPBs, other statutory organisations as well as
different professional bodies in order to formulate the framework for
recognized CPD activities or courses and draw up the requirements
in respect of prescribed CPD hours. Moreover, the PMSA also
planned to co-organise training programmes in respect of PM with
other organisations, Government departments and public bodies
with a view to further promoting the sustainable development of the
PM industry.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 | PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES AUTHORITY 41



42

KEER

Corporate Governance

RFREH

EER—BBATRNRERTEEH B
ANEBEFERARLFNERTEE B
PREAMMEMEERBYE R
BR - BRI -

HE2021F3A @ 5B R HEEZIE400FTK
o E R ARBROIEFEI0R - &
FATERMEET  HYWEEBEUEE
AE MEFRREESREEEMED
MERRIABLERERF AEHBE
TRTSH BIRRIRBEEESE KB
RESERAABOOEBERRELE
REMNBREIRELRBIE - REHEBE
BIR S BB RS AERARRIS - A
MAB B S HE ISR BB 15 S R A8 5 -

EEREFEN=ZFBEHAA - BARHEE
RHMERBRME AN RERE - &
ERR IR g MIRHF LA E AR H Y
EAMEBRRFAZDRE R - B
AEEYE ARIMEAMELERLEE
BRFANEL - YESESENYE QR
FMEABBREEELRERNRER
FPHyEE - ARG BSRIGER S -

REAHEHEEAER  EBERNFER
BT =0CETTAD RABEACRFE
XEE) BR(CRETTRD - (BEE
BRI I AR RO FI R T ST RD R R
EENRABRIEHIMEEERERTT
A1) - URMERRCRIFIERIER) - BAE
SYERRERME AREERKES - AR
TTEFEZEKY  RARRHEEBENYE
ARTS ©

RIBDERDIDESR  HEAHERTE
P& RCESTSTRD ARG MBEOERR
T BEEEEFERLERMT - 18
IR BEFPEFENEENEEK
B RIS TR EZRARER  mMER
FREAR DB ERCEST TR R EF
B AMEREDHINEEXFEFTED
IR °

VEEBEEER | 202021 AFEHRE

Complaints and Enquiries

The PMSA had all along communicated with various stakeholders
and the public through different means such as meeting, telephone
call and email, aiming to deal with opinions, enquiries and
complaints received in respect of PM services more effectively and
properly.

As of March 2021, the PMSA had received 409 complaints, and
10 of which involved licensees. The complaints came mainly from
property owners of residential properties. They complained against
the PMCs responsible for managing their properties for not handling
their complaints properly, failing to assist owners to convene
meetings, failing to handover properly at the end of appointment,
delay in taking follow-up actions about repair and maintenance
works of common facilities, inadequate provision of cleaning or
security services, inappropriate handling of noise nuisance or
unauthorised occupation of common areas, as well as refusal or
delay in providing relevant financial records or documents, etc.

PMCs and PMPs not yet licensed can still operate in the three-
year transitional period. The PMSA will provide assistance to
the complainants in relation to PM issues against such PMCs
or PMPs, including making enquiries with the relevant PMCs
or PMPs, relaying the complainants’ concerns to them, and
encouraging them to follow up on the relevant issues and enhance
communication with their clients in order to address their concerns
or to reach consensus.

To cope with the implementation of the licensing regime, the
PMSA had issued three Codes of Conduct and relevant Best
Practice Guides including “General Code of Conduct”, “Complaint
Handling Mechanism of Property Management Companies” and
“Effective Control over Property Management Business by Property
Management Companies” to provide practical guidance for PMCs
and PMPs in order to enhance their professional standards, so as
to provide the public with quality PM services.

Under section 5 of the PMSO, a licensee does not incur a legal
liability only because the licensee has contravened a provision of
the Code of Conduct. However, if the relevant provision of the
Code of Conduct is relevant to determining a matter that is an issue
in the legal proceedings including disciplinary hearings, the said
Code of Conduct is admissible in evidence in the proceedings, and
proof that the relevant licensee contravened or did not contravene
the relevant provision of the Code of Conduct may be relied on as
tending to establish or negate that matter.
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The purpose of Best Practice Guide is to enable licensees to
comply more effectively and professionally with the guidelines set
out in the Code of Conduct when carrying out their duties. Failure
to comply with the Best Practice Guide will not be regarded as
a disciplinary offence referred to in section 4 of the PMSO, but
licensees are encouraged to use their best endeavours to follow
the guide.

The PMSA will continue to issue Codes of Conduct and Best
Practice Guides in respect of different areas of PM so as to
enhance the professionalism of PMCs and PMPs, and encourage
the industry to provide quality PM services to the community.

KRBT

Statistics on Complaints

@ e

* BREGRRRRE - NRETAMELRE - NRMEERBENEETRE  URBBLAMENSKEEIS RARNFRS -

Such complaints include: dissatisfaction with the decision of owners’ organisations, dissatisfaction about repair works carried out by
property developer, water seepage in private unit and disputes relating to deed of mutual covenant, etc.
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EERBESEANNRFDE

Classification of Complaints within Jurisdiction of the PMSA

}

BT % 0 —RRE IR RS (08 B IRIEZE P HR
#FoOREMMRLTHRITEISE WELARE
ERRELEREREFESE)

General management services (e.g. failure to follow up
with complaints made by owners, failure to assist to
convene or arrange owners’ meetings and failure to
handover properly at the end of appointment, etc.)

MEOEE - RERNE (PIEHERTEREE
EH]E L ERORE S IMEE

Repair, maintenance or improvement (e.g. failure/delay in
carrying out repair or replacement of old/defective water
pipes or external wall)

FTYENREERE (PINNEEHERTEEER
FHRAE - EVEREESNARABNE
Facility management (e.g. low transparency in the
installation of electric car charging equipment, goods
occupying common area of carpark, etc.)

MEMBRRBHNER (FIaR B RRIENR R
Z BB RAE MR K EZERmARE N
RIFRERE)

Management of property environment (e.g. failure to
collect refuse on schedule, insufficient deployment of
security guards and failure to strengthen cleaning
where confirmed case of COVID-19 occurred in the

property, etc.)

BIT VI 0BT AR (DI BT S MR
TR RIS BRI B ERE)

Finance and asset management (e.g. budgeting and
accounts not clear enough, delay in dealing with
demand for inspection of financial records, etc.)

HEBL

Total

* ERNEREFERAES BB —ESEEE - R0 BEE ARNBE AT ERNEHFEREHE -

Since a single complaint case may involve more than one category of complaint, the total number of complaints in different categories is not

equal to the total number of complaint cases.
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External Communications

To tie in with the legislative procedure for the subsidiary legislation
under the PMSO and the implementation of the licensing regime,
the PMSA had actively disseminated related information to different
stakeholders through various channels during the year, with a view
to enhancing public understanding of the latest development of the
PMSA and the licensing regime.

Promoting Licensing Regime

The PMSA had formulated three phases of publicity works
having regard to the enactment of the subsidiary legislation
under the PMSO and the time-table for implementation of the
licensing regime. In order to strengthen the understanding of the
subsidiary legislation by different stakeholders as well as soliciting
their support for the licensing regime, 12 meetings with the
stakeholders were held and 59 seminars/forums were organised,
whereby tailor-made introduction and explanation were provided
to address the concerns of different stakeholders. The PMSA also
proactively collaborated with the district offices under the Home
Affairs Department. Through their “Building Management Training
Courses” and the distribution of Building Management Newsletter,
the licensing regime was introduced to the representatives of
owners’ organisations and their questions addressed.

Moreover, through direct electronic and physical mailing to
the PMCs, owners’ organisations and PM-related professional
bodies, the PMSA had kept promoting the licensing regime and
encouraging the PMCs and PMPs to apply for licence as soon as
possible.

In order to widely promote the implementation of the licensing
regime, the PMSA also produced posters for distribution to
PMCs, professional bodies, industry associations and owners’
organisations, etc. In addition, television and radio commercials
were produced and broadcast on various television and radio
channels to promote the licensing regime to the public and different
stakeholders.

Enhancing PMSA’s Corporate Image

To cope with the future development, the PMSA launched its
revamped website with the new domain name “pmsa.org.hk” in late
2020. Apart from the new design, functions of the website were
also enhanced, including the development of content management
system for immediate website content update, as well as the
introduction of search function. Connection between the PMSA
and various stakeholders could be further strengthened through
the Internet and it helped the public to enhance their understanding
about the PMSA, therefore, strengthening the PMSA’s corporate
image.

Furthermore, the PMSA also reinforced the connection with
stakeholders through social media platform, including setting up the
“PMSA Channel” at YouTube and creating an account at LinkedIn.
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Strengthen Media Relations

BARTEEHMEETRAEEEEMEIE  Athough the PMSA could not organise media events during the
BE S

BEES - BEREEEES

= A& epidemic, the PMSA adopted an active approach to keep the

B BEEREIVEMAEE  AESXIEI  media posted about its latest development through the issue of
EMERERHFTER - EERFENREL T press releases. The PMSA issued 30 press releases during the
HI0MFHER - ERsMHAMEERBMEE  vear, of which 5 were about the latest development of the PMSA,
R 4B HIEMRE - BIM103R 14 were related to the licensing regime, and 11 concerned the
BYELEE IO TIEETE - work progress of the ASPM.

B B

Issue Date

02/04/2020

15/04/2020

17/04/2020

25/04/2020

06/05/2020

22/05/2020

09/07/2020

20/07/2020

31/07/2020

[BIRMERES[YEEEERR RS ] B HBE8008 TE B

Over HK$8 Million Subsidies Granted Under the “Anti-epidemic Support Scheme for
Property Management Sector” of the “Anti-epidemic Fund”

[BIRIVERE ST E &8
EREIFFAREEZMERR

Application Deadline Extended and More Properties Included in ASPM under “Anti-
epidemic Fund”

MEEREEE RITHESER
Appointment of Chief Executive Officer of the Property Management Services Authority
[EhEER[MEERERANEEFNEI(E_RRIBREIRE

“Anti-epidemic Support Scheme for Property Management Sector (Phase Il)” under
“Anti-epidemic Fund” Covers Industrial and Commercial Buildings

[BIRMBRES[MEEEEANRIEAE] Bt h@ BT EETED

HK$120 Million Subsidies Granted under the “Anti-epidemic Support Scheme for
Property Management Sector” of the “Anti-epidemic Fund”

MREE QR R EEIE AR HIZ BN B i

Licensing Regime for Property Management Companies and Practitioners to be
Implemented Soon

EERTEYE AR MEIABICERERE S RAEME RS

PMSA Urges Property Management Companies and Owners’ Organisations to Seize
the Final Opportunity for Applying for the ASPM

MEEE AR RMEEEANEEHEIEAE
727 AR EIRAY R ERE R

Implementation of the Licensing Regime for Property Management Companies and
Property Management Practitioners
Appointment for Licence Application can be Made Online from 27 July

MEERRRRMEEEANEEHEABREAEE

Licensing Regime for Property Management Companies and Property Management
Practitioners Comes into Operation Tomorrow

A6 WMEBTEEEER | 202021 BFHE
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Issue Date

05/08/2020 (R R RS | TR ERER G L B8 2 BB E T BT A D

Over $540m Subsidies Granted under the “Anti-epidemic Support Scheme for Property
Management Sector” of the “Anti-epidemic Fund”

07/08/2020 MEEER(—RIFETTRDSRTIE

Gazettal of “General Code of Conduct” for Property Management Industry Today

13/08/2020 e
153303 5 4B AR R

Strengthening Communication to Facilitate the Industry in Licence Application
18/08/2020 [EEES I THMEERERTE RS B Ea7ETER

Over $700m Subsidies Granted under the “Anti-epidemic Support Scheme for Property
Management Sector” of the “Anti-epidemic Fund”

20/08/2020 MERERREERILHEHYE AR

Property Management Services Authority Issues the First Batch of Property
Management Practitioner Licences

27/08/2020 [FrEiEsEe I TR EEBEERE S IRTE B HEsEsTETER

Over $850m Subsidies Granted under the “Anti-epidemic Support Scheme for Property
Management Sector” of the “Anti-epidemic Fund”

01/09/2020 BABRMEEREZEHE
FAREIER
B RBRO00TR AR E D

Property Management Licensing Regime Implemented for One Month
Positive Feedback from the Industry
Over 900 Bookings for Licence Application Received

03/09/2020 [ RRRES | T 0 PEERE AL TIE S 2 S HIROET BT A

Over $930m Subsidies Granted under the “Anti-epidemic Support Scheme for Property
Management Sector” of the “Anti-epidemic Fund”

21/10/2020 (EBIBEEE B2019—20FFREMEREERE
BIEEREEBEIE
2 NHEETYE RS
“PMSA Annual Report 2019-20” Presented to the Legislative Council

Active Work for the Implementation of the Property Management Industry Licensing
Regime

29/10/2020 [BrRIEES | T YEIEE B HE11ETER
HARAE R T EREARHETT

Over $1.1 Billion Subsidies Granted and Follow-up Work for the “Anti-epidemic Support
Scheme for Property Management Sector” of the “Anti-epidemic Fund” in Full Swing
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Issue Date

13/11/2020

19/11/2020

25/11/2020

18/12/2020

30/12/2020

31/12/2020

08/01/2021

10/02/2021

19/02/2021

24/02/2021

30/03/2021

MEEIRREE HE L B00EYE R
SHBAMFEALE

Over 900 Property Management Licences Issued
List of Licensees Gazetted Today

YIREE R BN HIE T2 L E1,000[@H%E R

Over 1,000 Property Management Licences Issued Under the Property Management
Industry Licensing Regime

MEEEEEERENIFEBHRE)ERENNEERXERERATF ARG ER

&
=

Property Management Services Authority Fully Supports the Policy Address Proposal
to Subsidise the Property Management Industry to Hire Young People and Create Job
Opportunities

B IR ELE R HE BT ARk

Property Management Services Authority Launches Revamped Website
MEEBRREEERFFKYEEE R RRERFHOEEDR(MEEE R RIZAR RIEHY
FEBER) (BEFFRDEBBKRIFIERER)

PMSA Formulates the Codes of Conduct entitled “Complaint Handling Mechanism of
Property Management Companies” and “Effective Control over Property Management
Business by Property Management Companies”, and the relevant Best Practice Guides

(B R RS T I s BB a1 1 187 4 B

Over $1.1 Billion Subsidies Granted under the “Anti-epidemic Support Scheme for
Property Management Sector” of the “Anti-epidemic Fund”

MEEEFR(MEEE R BRIZRRABFIERT TR MM EEE A RAGRIEF Y%
BEEGHRT TS ATIE

Codes of Conduct for Property Management Industry entitled “Complaint Handling
Mechanism of Property Management Companies” and “Effective Control over Property
Management Business by Property Management Companies” Gazetted Today

YEEIREENEHIE T2 % L 82,000EYE 2R

Over 2,000 Property Management Licences Issued Under the Property Management
Industry Licensing Regime

VI EIR S ELE FEE L E2,0001E %) & b ER
SHEBEAMEFBRARE

Over 2,000 Property Management Licences Issued

List of Licensees Gazetted Today

MEEBXEERSARRTTRIRENMEER

WEEHERREATFIERES

PMSA Held a Focus Group Meeting Today to Collect Views from Stakeholders to
Develop Practical Guides for the Industry

MEEREEE RIEAREEHEZERKETHARE
MEERREERTRABE R TR KRR

First Batch Students of the PMSA Specified Courses Will Soon Graduate

PMSA Chairperson Issued an Appeal and Appreciation Letter to the Students
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“Anti-epidemic Support Scheme for Property
Management Sector” of the “Anti-epidemic Fund”

Different sectors of Hong Kong had been impacted by the
COVID-19 epidemic since early 2020. The Government had set
up the ASPM under the Anti-epidemic Fund and the PMSA was
commissioned to implement it. The ASPM was implemented
through three phases, namely, Phase | (for private residential and
commercial cum residential buildings), Phase Il (for private industrial
and commercial buildings), and the last Phase, the “Enhanced
ASPM” (whereby the subsidy period was extended and the cap on
headcounts of the subsidy for frontline PM workers was relaxed).

Under the ASPM, eligible PMCs or owners’ organisations could
apply for hardship allowance for their frontline PM workers engaged
as well as cleansing subsidy for the properties. The Phase | of the
ASPM was launched from March 2020 to receive applications and
the end date for making applications under the last Phase, the
“Enhanced ASPM”, was 15 July 2020. All the application vetting
and subsidy disbursement work was completed by end 2020.

The ASPM provided two types of subsidy for the PM industry, i.e.
the hardship allowance for eligible PMCs or owners’ organisations
to provide financial assistance to frontline PM workers, and the one-
off cleansing subsidy for eligible PMCs or owners’ organisations in
respect of each eligible property to help strengthen cleansing work
during the period, covering the purchase of cleansing material and
protective gear, etc.

The PMSA carried out the vetting work through lenient, expeditious
and simple procedures in order to provide financial support for
eligible properties and the related frontline PM workers for their
early benefit.

Upon commissioning by the Home Affairs Department, the PMSA
had immediately carried out the preparatory work and had set
up a dedicated team to vet the applications. The PMSA had also
launched a series of publicity initiatives, including the holding
of physical and online briefing sessions, the development of a
dedicated website, production of publicity leaflets, conducting
media interview and promotion through newspapers and radio, in
order to encourage PMCs and owners’ organisations of eligible
properties to submit application early.
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Since the launch of the ASPM, the PMSA had handled over
31,000 enquiries concerning the application arrangements, and
had received in total over 13,000 applications for subsidy, as well
as another 12,000 applications in respect of approved cases
making further application under the “Enhanced ASPM”. After
completion of all vetting work, the PMSA had approved a total of
around 12,000 applications as well as another 10,000 applications
under the “Enhanced ASPM”. The total subsidy granted was
over $1.1 billion, benefiting about 40,000 properties and over
160,000 frontline PM workers. All the approved subsidy had been
disbursed, and the information about the approved cases (including
the property name and address, the name of the applicant (whether
PMC or owners’ organisation)) had been uploaded to the dedicated
website to enhance the transparency of the ASPM.

Under the application requirement, the applicant had to retain
for a period of at least 12 months the forms of subsidy receipts
signed by the frontline PM workers who had received the subsidy.
In addition, upon receipt of the subsidy, the applicant had to fill
out a subsidy release form specified by the PMSA to set out the
information of the workers benefited and submit the form to the
PMSA for verification.

After consulting the Home Affairs Department and the Independent
Commission Against Corruption, the PMSA had formulated an
audit review mechanism, and had conducted audit review on 1,330
applications (around 11% of the applications approved) selected
accordingly. In addition, the PMSA further selected 10% (i.e. 140
applications) of such cases for conducting physical audit on site
to verify the applications. The properties selected for physical
audit spanned across Hong Kong Island, Kowloon and the New
Territories, covering different types of properties including major
or single block residential buildings, commercial cum residential
buildings as well as industrial, commercial buildings and shopping
malls, etc.
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14 . 04 . 2020 ]

RERBEBRHARIIEEEERTRFRATIGMEEBITR
W THREEREEREMLIMEIRTEINRFBER - LAER
ESIE

The then Secretary for Home Affairs, Mr. LAU Kong-Wah, JP, paid
a visit together with the PMSA Chairperson to the PMSA Executive
Office to understand the work of the PMSA to process ASPM
applications and to give support to the staff.

11 . 06 . 2020 )

EERIFEATRAHEZEZRESH - BB ERNY
XEERFEHENER -

The Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer of the PMSA met
with members of the Legislative Council and solicited their views on
the property management licensing regime.

26 . 06 . 2020 |

EEREIEFERMEEIRFE2020 — EH 1 ¥ BB R0 218 4
EXREE  WEHRE FMESENEYEETRRTMGIE -

The Vice-chairperson of the PMSA attended the “Property
Management Week 2020 - Excellent Practitioners Award
Ceremony” as the Guest-of-Honour and introduced the property
management licensing regime to the attendees.

08 . 07 . 2020 ]
Lol

What should you kng? EERBETRESTENEMBGREEIRAPMENN 2020/ &
' B15BFEE IREGEBRDE RO L EREE -

The Vice-chairperson of the PMSA attended the “Conference
2020 cum 15 Anniversary” organised by the Property and Facility
Management Division of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and

introduced the PMSO and the licensing regime to the participants.
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12 .08 . 2020 1

XEETE  BEREIFELTBAZENEGERT A MEER
P RERR BRI T AR ED R B o

The Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer of the PMSA
introduced the implementation of the property management
licensing regime to property developers via video conferencing.

71 AT T ¢F 120200

orkshops Wcentral & Weslern bisrict 2020

20 . 08 . 2020 )

EERRMEHMEETEAMBREENE  AEFREEH LS
B E = R EREFE AMRER o

The PMP Licence Presentation Ceremony was held by the PMSA.
The first batch of 25 formal and provisional property management
practitioner licences were presented by the PMSA Chairperson.

07 & 14 . 10 . 2020 A

EEREHLFRATARREEBREI NN FARAKEEETIE
$72020] © MEBRETHBRRNABERSIEZ -

The PMSA was invited to attend the “Building Management
Workshop in Central and Western District 2020” organised by the
Central and Western District Office for introduction of the property
management licensing regime to the representatives of owners’
organisations in the district.

16 .10 . 2020 |

EERERLFEATNRRERE IRV TR EE TR EX
g MEREFEBRENAMEEEEGE -

The PMSA was invited to attend the “Yuen Long District Building
Management Seminar 2020” organised by the Yuen Long District
Office for introduction of the property management licensing regime
to the representatives of owners’ organisations in the district.

(“ Gitf K 2202072 ERAE

EUTE
AWARDS 2020
e

L d
£l

‘i“ﬂwl

VEEBEEER | 202021 AFEHRE

04 .11 . 2020 A

EEREIRRITRARLEREBEAFELEEGRAEKRIE2020M %
HIB | o

The Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer of the PMSA
attended the HKIH Elite Awards 2020 Presentation Ceremony.



06. 11 . 2020 ]

EEREHEHEREERBEBEF 202021 FELE R
ANBFERIZTERE ] MEREFEBRINAEBREE -
The PMSA was invited to attend the “2020/21 Tsuen Wan District
Private Buildings Building Management Certificate Course”
organised by the Tsuen Wan District Office to introduce the
property management licensing regime to representatives of the
owners’ organisations in the district.

24 .11. 2020 )

EEREBLFARERBEBRE M REAEEIRIIRRE
2020] - [AIEBRETABRRNBEEGE -
The PMSA was invited to attend the “Eastern District Building
Management Training Course 2020” organised by the Eastern
District Office to introduce the property management licensing
regime to representatives of owners’ organisations in the district.

24 .02 . 2021 )

EERRB AR TTADEREENE SR  WESHENEER
R REAGIFIERES -

The PMSA held a focus group meeting in respect of Code of
Conduct online to collect views from various stakeholders for
drawing up practical guidelines for the industry.

25 .03 . 2021 )

EERITEAHEZLE EFEBRN 2 HREEE QF in Action
REE ] -
The Chief Executive Officer of the PMSA was invited to attend
the QF Partnerships Commendation Ceremony and QF in Action
Launch Ceremony.

29 .03 . 2021 )

EEREBLERESNEREREZE BN BER ELET
ERBHBELANZE ] -

The PMSA was invited to attend the “Smoke-free Housing

Management Programme Recognition Ceremony cum Seminar”

organised by the Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health.
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PRERBRTRERTE LEE AR
EATERLRERE -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES AUTHORITY

(established in Hong Kong under the Property Management Services
Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Property Management
Services Authority (“PMSA”) set out on pages 63 to 88, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the
statement of income and expenditure, statement of changes in reserve
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the PMSA as at 31 March 2021, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Property
Management Services Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the PMSA in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other Information

The PMSA is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when
it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the PMSA for the Financial
Statements

The PMSA is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Property Management Services Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the PMSA determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the PMSA is responsible for
assessing its ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the PMSA either intends to
liguidate the PMSA or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The PMSA is responsible for overseeing its financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Part 6 of Schedule 3 to the Property Management
Services Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the PMSA'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the PMSA.
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PATRICK WONG C.P.A. LIMITED
RERBENGEHARLA

Certified Public Accountants

217, B RE BRI

LAU YUK MING HAROLD

FCPA (Practising), MSCA

Certified Public Accountant (Practising), Hong Kong
Practising Certificate Number: P05468

7 - 202168 A9H
Hong Kong, 9 August 2021
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the PMSA’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the PMSA’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the PMSA to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the PMSA regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.



WZEER STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
HZE2021F3A31HILEFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2020
B EE BTT
Notes HK$
L'ON Income
(=GN Levies 33,394,550 30,829,400
ek Licence fees 1,112,258 —
RITHB Bank interest 111,437 756
THER Administration fee 11,252,395 747,605
Hbg A Other income 2 200
45,870,642 31,577,961
S H Expenditure 4
BIHA Staff costs 26,909,199 17,056,409
EXEM Professional fees 254,800 368,741
FENEYNEIEE Office accommodation and
related expenses 1,638,610 1,374,354
EAkEERY Corporate communications and
promotion 1,091,225 630,319
A& (ENfERE ) Levy collection charges 568,590 524,904
AR IT expenses 729,433 295,461
e Depreciation 8,236,886 7,704,069
ZERRT N & Auditor’s remuneration 18,200 18,300
HAth 32 Other expenses 721,289 411,267
i E R Finance costs 5 297,383 374,630
40,465,615 28,758,454
FERKRREEZEKE Surplus and total comprehensive
income for the year 5,405,027 2,819,507
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BRI R

20213 A31H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 MARCH 2021

2020
Bt BT
Notes HKS
FREBEE Non-current assets
VY EINE T Property and equipment 6 7,633,613 9,252,469
FRELE Right-of-use assets 7 2,342,995 7,363,699
9,976,608 16,616,168
RBEE Current assets
& MIBRIE Deposits and prepayments 8 1,960,773 1,504,614
J7E LA BR % K% L b e U R Accounts and other receivables 9 4,503,764 1,954,698
I = A 2 RITER Bank deposits with maturity over
3 months 24,000,000 —
BITEFELIRS Bank balances and cash 17,292,168 226,910,920
47,756,705 230,370,232
wREAE Current liabilities
R BRI N BT IE B Accounts payables and accruals 10 5,939,280 5,171,086
U RIE Temporary receipts 11 6,236,500 203,510,000
HEARE Lease liabilities 12 2,173,522 4,633,455
IRIEWA Deferred income 13 9,233,042 2,752,395
23,582,344 216,066,936
REBEEZFE Net current assets 24,174,361 14,303,296
HWEERRBERE Total assets less current
liabilities 34,150,969 30,919,464
FRBARE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 12 — 2,173,522
= Government loan 14 22,000,000 22,000,000
22,000,000 24,173,522
BEE Net assets 12,150,969 6,745,942
#E Reserve
2REER Accumulated surplus 12,150,969 6,745,942

BN E63H £ F88H KB 5 W RN 2021 F

The financial statements on pages 63 to 88 were approved and
authorised for issue by the PMSA on 9 August 2021 and are signed on
its behalf by:

BHIREMXEEXEE BB MERR
WHATRERE

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP
Chairperson

Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
Vice-chairperson

SEREE - WERMEE - KFet AEXHE - REBE - KFHEL
FE B
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R B STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVE
HE2021F3A31BILEFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
BHEEHR
Accumulated
surplus
BIT
HK$
R2019F4A1H At 1 April 2019 3,926,435
FEAKRKEZAWGE Surplus and total comprehensive income
for the year 2,819,507
20203 531 H 202048 1H At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 6,745,942
FEABEEARE Surplus and total comprehensive income
for the year 5,405,027
A20214F3H31H At 31 March 2021 12,150,969
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BHERERX STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BHZE2021F3 A3 AILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
2020
BIT
HK$
EETEHHRESRE Cash flows from operating
activities
FERH% Surplus for the year 5,405,027 2,819,507
HTINSIBEL AR Adjustments for:
FMEWA Interest income (111,437) (756)
HEaENE Interest on lease liabilities 54,063 112,023
ERFETH Loan interest expense 243,320 262,607
e Depreciation 8,236,886 7,704,069
BBV KRG EE Loss on disposal of property and
equipment 17,228 —
EEELEF A 2EEHRERE  Operating cash flows before
changes in working capital 13,845,087 10,897,450
& RIEMZTBEOEM), H (Increase)/decrease in deposits and
prepayments (456,159) 180,082
JFEE LA B S50 % L Ath R LUK 3 Increase in accounts and other
receivables (2,492,9006) (14,758)
BERIE G D), /180 (Decrease)/increase in temporary
receipts (197,273,500) 203,510,000
IEEU AIE HN Increase in deferred income 6,480,647 2,752,395
JEA BRI K2 FE S IE B 4540 Increase in accounts payables and
accruals 768,194 1,099,796
SIETE (FTA) gz Net cash (used in)/generated
REFHE from operating activities (179,128,637) 218,424,965
REFBHZHENE Cash flows from investing
activities
BB A ZE NG Purchase of property and equipment (1,614,554) (2,264,760)
REBVHEREE Purchase returns of property and
equipment — 22,000
EHFIE Interest received 55,277 756
Bl = & A 2 $RITIF 5L N Increase in bank deposits with
maturity over 3 months (24,000,000) —
RETEFTAZRESFRE Net cash used in investing
activities (25,559,277) (2,242,004)
REEHZRENE Cash flows from financing
activities
BNHAERS 2 EXRED Capital element of lease rentals paid (4,633,455) (4,607,329)
ENEEHEEZMEELS Interest element of lease rentals paid (54,063) (112,023)
SHBEFFE Loan interest paid (243,320) (262,607)
REEEFTAZESFHE Net cash used in financing
activities (4,930,838) (4,981,959)
RERREZEYORD),/ Net (decrease)/increase in cash
EINFEE and cash equivalents (209,618,752) 211,201,002
FENRELESEEYER Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 226,910,920 15,709,918
FRESRESEEVER Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 17,292,168 226,910,920
HEeRBELEEYEREDN Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash equivalents
BITHEFERRS Bank balances and cash 17,292,168 226,910,920
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

1. General Information

The Property Management Services Authority (“PMSA”) was
established under the Property Management Services Ordinance
(Cap. 626) which was enacted on 26 May 2016, with the principal
functions to regulate and promote the development of the property
management services industry.

The office address of the PMSA is at Units 806-8, 8/F, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the functional currency of the PMSA.

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collectively include all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and
the Property Management Services Ordinance. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that were applied for the first time in the current year of the
PMSA. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs had
no material effect on the results and financial position of the
PMSA for the current and prior years.

The PMSA has not early adopted new and revised HKFRSs
that are not yet effective for the current year. Explanation of
this is included in Note 19.
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2. FESHHE®@®
(a) mWELEE ()

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
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Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, staff costs and other
costs that are directly related to the project were included
under project expenses. From the year ended 31 March
2021 onwards, the project related expenses are separately
presented under the relevant lines to reflect the nature of such
expenditures. The comparative figures have been reclassified
to conform with the revised presentation.

Project expenses of $744,273 for the year ended 31
March 2020 have been reclassified as staff cost $522,310,
professional fees $66,000, corporate communications and
promotion $59,352 and other expenses $96,611 respectively,
to conform with current year’s presentation.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Revenue recognition

Levy is recognized as income when it becomes due and
payable to the PMSA.

Bank interest income is recognized as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

The PMSA recognized revenue from contracts with customers
is based on the performance obligations identified in the
contracts. Revenue is recognized when (or as) the PMSA
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised
service to a customer who obtains the control of the service.
Further details of the PMSA’s revenue recognition policies are
as follows:

(i)  Administration fee income and licence application fee are
recognized upon provision of services.

(i) Licence fees is recognized over time on a straight-line
basis over the licence period.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the
statement of financial position when the PMSA becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
PMSA transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the PMSA neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received is recognized in statement of income and
expenditure.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligations
specified in the relevant contract are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid is
recognized in the statement of income and expenditure.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis where the purchases or sales of assets that under
contracts whose terms require delivery of the assets within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of investments at
fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized immediately in statement
of income and expenditure.

Financial assets of the PMSA are classified under financial
assets at amortised cost.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets (including account and other receivables)
are classified under financial assets at amortised cost if they
satisfy both of the following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowances for expected credit losses.

(e) Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The PMSA recognizes loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the PMSA measures the
loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of that financial instrument
(“lifetime expected credit losses”) for accounts and other
receivables, or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than account and other receivables)
has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the PMSA measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represents the expected credit
losses that result from default events on that financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e)

U]

(9)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses
(continued)

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to the
required amount is recognized as an impairment in statement
of income and expenditure.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, wherever there is any
indication that an item of property and equipment is impaired,
the recoverable amount of the asset should be estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. If the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognized to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognized in surplus or deficit.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss should not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined has no impairment loss been recognized
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to surplus or deficit in the year in which the reversals are
recognized.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property and
equipment less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method as follows:

Computers and softwares 3 years
Office equipment 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Leases

@
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Leases are recognized as right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assets are available for
use by the PMSA. Right-of-use assets are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated to write off
their cost over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the office
reinstatement costs. Lease liabilities are initially recognized
at the present value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the lease liabilities.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low
value assets are recognized as expenses in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are
leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less.

Accounts and other receivables, and contract
assets and contract liabilities

A receivable is recognized when the PMSA’s right to
consideration is unconditional. A right to consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognized before the PMSA has an unconditional right to
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset.
Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 2(g)
above).



B M BB IR E R B AR

Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements

2. FEEFHER®@®)

(i)

)

(k)

FEWRR R EMERR - RS
HEERESHNEEGED

BREEREE RRIESAMENR
R NEGZ AR ERER

ABHER - BHEEREMT2e)M
HBCRFHEERHEEERE - WRUER
REEFRSBGHERETDEERE
WHIE - BHABEREPXNREX
EHRE AR BRI REN (LB
AT - MR IR RER)E - M
HEE BHERER AR T IARER -

RERBREEED

RERERERME  Re ke
EZEVBEERSMNFAKIEAR
B HHYIRTTEAK

B

FEERENDBENEHAEER
HEFEEME - METHEEESNEE
BIOBEEIRINAR - X AIEH AT SR fh
it BERREE - WREBKREE
BX - AR ETEEMTERNY
BRI -

T4 YEETBEEESR | 202021 AFEHRE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

0

)

(k)

Accounts and other receivables, and contract
assets and contract liabilities (continued)

A contract asset is recognized when the PMSA recognizes
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(e)
above and are reclassified as receivables when the right to
the consideration has become unconditional. A contract
liability is recognized when the customer pays consideration,
or has an unconditional right to consideration (in such case,
a corresponding receivable is recognized), before the PMSA
recognizes the related revenue.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits with
banks within 3 months to maturity from date of deposit.

Provision

Provisions are recognized when the PMSA has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.



2. TESHBERGE) 2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
() EEER () Employee benefits
e One aEFFER - AeH Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
FORMGTEINH R R IFER IR 2 contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
ﬁXZIKi’]{-E L5 R B IR R RS HY benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
FERNRE - services are rendered by employees of the PMSA.
(m) FEXZH (m) Interest expenses
MBS R E A BRI EH o Interest expenses are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
(n) BEAEAL (n) Related parties
A EHRERMS - BEALTBIE For the purposes of these financial statements, a related party
HFEUNTEEMALRERE includes a person and an entity as defined below:
() THATHHEHABRBEHER A () A person or a close member of that person’s family is
MEERAME  BZAAL: related to the PMSA if that person:
@) FEIZEHISERIEFIEEE B (@) has control or joint control of the PMSA;
(b) HEERBEERTEN : 5 (b) has significant influence over the PMSA; or
 BREERZEEEERENK (©) is a member of the key management personnel of the
B PMSA.
iy B TNAER—BEEDE @ BlF (i) An entity is related to the PMSA if any of the following
BEREERAHEEERER conditions applies:
.
() ZERAEERER —£E (a) The entity and the PMSA are members of the same
ZHKEARI(EIZRF AT - group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
L by=RNSIS AR ENU ) =YNGIE fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

tREARE) -

b)) —HEEAS —EEMEE (o) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
NAElHEERLE (I —F entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
EBEEETKERARZ a group of which the other entity is a member).
ﬁ%%ﬁ ARAEDRE) -
) MEEEHYAER—F=ZFH () Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
BEDE - party.
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2. FESHHE®@®
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n) Related parties (continued)

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

©)

(h)

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the PMSA or an entity
related to the PMSA. If the PMSA s itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
PMSA.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

A person identified in ())(a) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity.

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the PMSA.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.



3. BE

RIBCHR IS
BRI -

1) 87 15 -

3. Taxation

EEREER R The PMSA is exempt from Hong Kong Profits Tax under section

87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

4. T H 4. Expenditure
2020
BT
HK$
FEABNMEZERZENRG - Surplus and total comprehensive
income for the year is arrived
at after charging:
BT Staff costs
He REMER Salaries and other benefits 26,221,538 16,663,813
REHRFURIRETEIAHER Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 687,661 392,596
26,909,199 17,056,409
5. BiEEHR 5. Finance Costs
2020
BT
HK$
HEAEHNA Interest on lease liabilities 54,063 112,023
BRI ELE Loan interest expense 243,320 262,607
297,383 374,630
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6. MEKFZE 6. Property and Equipment
Bl RRM RRERE RERREE THEMEEE st
Computers Office Furniture Leasehold
and softwares equipment and fixtures  improvements Total
BT o BT BT BT
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
B Cost
20194 A1H At 1 April 2019 1,210,825 50,880 859,955 8,060,000 10,181,660
NE Additions 2,152,436 43,056 21,506 47,762 2,264,760
RE Returns - — (22,000) - (22,000)
202043 A31A K At 31 March 2020 and
2020F4H1H 1 April 2020 3,363,261 93,936 859,461 8,107,762 12,424,420
NE Additions 1,365,712 108,055 9,540 131,247 1,614,554
RE Disposals (100,000) — (1,125) - (101,125)
1202143318 At 31 March 2021 4,628,973 201,991 867,876 8,239,009 13,937,849
ZiFE Accumulated depreciation
201954818 At 1 April 2019 189,078 7,750 23,090 268,667 488,585
FENE Charge for the year 888,638 11,153 170,779 1,612,796 2,683,366
72020634318 R At 31 March 2020 and
2020F4A1H 1 April 2020 1,077,716 18,903 193,869 1,881,463 3,171,951
FEHE Charge for the year 1,377,621 38,303 172,229 1,628,029 3,216,182
e B B [ Written back on disposals (83,333) - (564) — (83,897)
2021434318 At 31 March 2021 2,372,004 57,206 365,534 3,509,492 6,304,236
REFE Net book value
R2021%F3A31H At 31 March 2021 2,256,969 144,785 502,342 4,729,517 7,633,613
#2020%3A31H At 31 March 2020 2,285,545 75,033 665,592 6,226,299 9,252,469
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7. ERAEEE 7. Right-of-use Assets
BT
HK$
5N Cost
R2019%F4A1H ~ 202053A31H & At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and
202143 A31 HAEsR 31 March 2021 12,384,402
ZiHinE Accumulated depreciation
R2019%4 A1H At 1 April 2019 —
FEHE Charge for the year 5,020,703
M2020%3A31H At 31 March 2020 5,020,703
FERE Charge for the year 5,020,704
R202143A31H At 31 March 2021 10,041,407
BRENEE Net book value
R2021FE3 A31H &% At 31 March 2021 2,342,995
R2020F3 A31 H &% At 31 March 2020 7,363,699

EEREEEHERRETYE - 8O
e /R32E36ME A - ERMHBEA R
EEREH/TENGHERRIRERT
SHSEHESFERE - SHEHTE
A HEE -

8. BERANNE

ReEMBENFERREEMARERR
®#85H1,410,0687% 7T (2020 : 1,410,068
BT - BEIR —FRlkE -

The PMSA is the lessee of several properties held under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 32 to 36
months. Two of the leases offer the PMSA an option to renew the
leases for further 3 years at prevailing market rent after expiration
of the initial period. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

Deposits and Prepayments

Deposits and prepayments include deposits related to office rental
and utilities deposits of HK$1,410,068 (2020: HK$1,410,068) that
are expected to be recovered within one year.
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9. FEUR SRR K H fth FE WK

9. Accounts and Other Receivables

2020
BT
HK$
FEW R Levy receivables 2,844,604 1,954,698
H b e R Other receivables 1,603,000 —
JEUWF B Interest receivables 56,160 —
4,503,764 1,954,698
REEFKEEER  EERBREMER At the end of each financial reporting period, the PMSA’s levy
FERE R R EM BN EERESE — receivables and other receivables were individually assessed for
HE - PERES AM TR REEE - impairment, based on their credit history.
BIEAEKE  EERARAAERKIEY Based on past experience, the PMSA considers that no
EWENE LA 2E8WE - FIATEE impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these receivables
VERE 2 o 8 WURUER To At I U SR Y as there has not been any change in credit quality and the
BRER D ATANT receivables are considered fully recoverable. The ageing analysis
of the levy receivables and other receivables is as follow:
2020
BT
HK$
1-90H 1-90 days 3,961,254 1,954,348
91 -180H 91 - 180 days 486,000 —
HiB180H Over 180 days 350 350
4,447,604 1,954,698
10. B BRAX R FEGHIE H 10. Accounts Payables and Accruals
2020
BT
HK$
JETBR R Accounts payable 348,925 919,238
HibfE HRIEMESTIER Other payables and accruals 162,749 147,423
e Provisions for
—KImEE — Gratuity 3,544,179 2,653,230
— KRR - Leave 889,690 481,100
—WANEEREHR — Office reinstatement cost 993,737 970,095
5,939,280 5,171,086
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11. Temporary Receipts

To give recognition in anti-epidemic efforts and provide
financial support to frontline property management workers, the
Government has established the “Anti-epidemic Support Scheme
for Property Management Sector” (“ASPM”) under the “Anti-
epidemic Fund”. The PMSA has been commissioned by the Home
Affairs Department to implement the ASPM.

The objective of the ASPM is to provide financial support to
frontline property management workers (i.e. cleansing and security
workers) in private residential and composite (i.e. commercial
cum residential) buildings, as well as industrial and commercial
buildings, with a view to improving their personal protection and
environmental hygiene, and giving recognition to their services.
The ASPM will also alleviate the additional costs arising from
heightened cleansing efforts and the burden on the residents,
owners and tenants.

12.fHE8E 12. Lease Liabilities
2020
BT
HK$
HEIAZIHILFE Year ended 31 March
HEABFE Interest on lease liabilities 54,063 112,023
HEReRT Total cash outflow for lease
—HHEAE — Lease liabilities 4,633,455 4,607,329
MR3HA31H At 31 March
HEABEHFEER Maturity profile of lease liabilities
——F R — Within 1 year 2,178,809 4,687,543
——FRE=FN — After 1 year but within 3 years = 2,178,809
HEBBECRREER) Lease liabilities (undiscounted) 2,178,809 6,866,352
BRIRE Discount amount (5,287) (59,348)
HEAEERR) Lease liabilities (discounted) 2,173,522 6,807,004
2R V= Classified as:
mEBE Current portion 2,173,522 4,633,455
e e UM=K= Non-current portion = 2,173,522
2,173,522 6,806,977
HEIAZIHILFE Year ended 31 March
HEAERAEY Movements of the carrying amount
of lease liabilities:
HE B At the beginning of the reporting period 6,806,977 —
HESEH Non-cash changes
—HEAEFE — Interest on lease liabilities 54,063 112,023
—THHEEBEZER — Recognition of lease liabilities — 11,414,306
Rez Cash payments (4,687,518) (4,719,352)
HEREEHR At the end of the reporting period 2,173,522 6,806,977
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13 EZEW A 13. Deferred Income
2020
BT
HKS$

EIEYA Deferred income in respect of

1TIEE A Administration fee* - 2,752,395
alE = Licence fees* 9,233,042 -
9,233,042 2,752,395

# BEERARRBEFEBBZREETRUT
[EEABIAXNNITRE - SBEEA
REEXHELSME RAERIEER
HERBEA -

TS 2 FBUGRIBR S i) 2 IR A 4
HEMRBNFE 2 W A2,752,3957 T
(2020 : &) »

T RRERBB(MEERRBRDIM RS
B AMERL 12 BR A R ER PR AE R R B W SE
EERRERREA -

i BR B 2 TR WOGR TR 3R 5 B V) 2 EE A
EHROERBR/AFE 2 W AT (2020 :

).

14. BUR B

RN ERAEERER - WHERE
DEFIEE - (BE BEHREF12020/218F
B EAEILIESF 2 2023/24 T HFE »
FEgmE—NREDNERARTERE
NEEFHRERENIAI BT o FlEIA
E|ATEEFE  BEREEERAEH
=i
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#  Deferred income represents the administration fees received from the
Home Affairs Department to implement the ASPM, and is deferred and
recognized as income in the statement of income and expenditure on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.

Revenue in respect of the administration fee recognized during the year
that was included in the opening deferred income is HK$2,752,395 (2020:
nil).

Deferred income represents the licence fees received from the licensees
in accordance with the provisions in the Property Management Services
Ordinance, and deferred and recognized as income in the statement of
income and expenditure over the licence period.

Revenue in respect of the licence fees recognized during the year that was
included in the opening deferred income is nil (2020: nil).

14. Government Loan

The loan from Government is unsecured and repayable by 5
equal annual instalments. The first repayment is deferred from the
financial year 2020/21 by 3 years to the financial year 2023/24.
From the day on which the loan was drawn for the first time,
interest will be accrued and paid on 31 March of each financial
year. Interest is to be calculated at “no-gain-no-loss” rate on the
basis of simple interest rate on the outstanding loan amount.



15. EXBEALTRS
TEFEENEERRMEALAMETHR

15. Material Related Party Transactions

During the year the PMSA undertook the following material

BEEBEAZZHIT transactions with related parties in the normal course of its
operation:
2020
BT
HK$
TEEE A BRI RN Remuneration for key management
personnel
LHIB TR Short-term employee benefits 5,238,451 3,624,313
BERL 21T Post-employment benefits 733,885 398,400
5,972,336 4,022,713
H@EEET Al B TR (R MIEE4) - Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 4).
16.eMEERERE 16. Financial Assets and Liabilities
(a) eMEEREBER (a) Categories of financial assets and liabilities
2020
BT
HK$
ERMEE Financial assets
MBNEE — 1R I ANE ¢ Current assets — at amortised cost:
b7 Deposits 1,410,068 1,410,068
J7E AT B o K2 ELAth e Wik Accounts and other receivables 4,508,764 1,954,698
BE=EAZRITER Bank deposit with maturity over 3
months 24,000,000 —
WRITEFENIRS Bank balances and cash 17,292,168 226,910,920
47,206,000 230,275,686
RIBE Financial liabilities
IEREEE IR EA AN E Non-current liabilities — at amortised
cost:
HIRER Government loan 22,000,000 22,000,000
mEEE IR ERAE Current liabilities — at amortised cost:
= I8 Temporary receipts 6,236,500 203,510,000
FERBR N FEETTE B Accounts payables and accruals 5,939,280 5,171,086
34,175,780 230,681,086
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16. Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

In the normal course of the operation, the PMSA does not
expose to significant foreign currency risk and price risk. Other
risks are described below:

@

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The PMSA’s interest bearing financial liability is
government loan.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2021, had the interest rate been 1% higher/
lower and with all other variables held constant, the
PMSA'’s surplus for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$220,000 (2020: surplus would decrease/increase by
HK$220,000).

Credit risk

The PMSA'’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
banks and is insignificant because the counterparties are
the banks with high credit rating.

The PMSA does not hold any collateral to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance.

The PMSA has no significant concentrations of credit risk
with respect to the services provided to clients; the credit
risk is therefore limited.

The PMSA considers the credit risk on its financial assets
is in line with original expectations, and no significant
expected credit losses are expected.
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16. Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk
The PMSA’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it

maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The following table details the contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the PMSA'’s financial

B AT © liabilities:
RECHTIR A —FERZ
FEeE ARAER:E BRER R —F
Contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or More than
amount cash flow on demand 1 year
87T 87T 87T 8IT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
R202143A31 8 At 31 March 2021
mEaRE Current liabilities
I RIA Temporary receipts 6,236,500 6,236,500 6,236,500 —
HEEE Lease liabilities 2,173,522 2,178,807 2,178,807 —
JENBRFR R FERTIE B Accounts payables and
accruals 5,939,280 5,939,280 5,939,280 —
FnBAEE Non-current liabilities
BHRER Government loan 22,000,000 22,000,000 — 22,000,000
36,349,302 36,354,587 14,354,587 22,000,000
20203 A31H At 31 March 2020
MEBAE Current liabilities
IR Temporary receipts 203,510,000 203,510,000 203,510,000 -
HEAaRE Lease liabilities 4,633,455 4,687,518 4,687,518 —
ERERF R IERIEE Accounts payables and
accruals 5,171,086 5,171,086 4,200,991 970,095
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HERE Lease liabilities 2,173,522 2,178,807 — 2,178,807
BFER Government loan 22,000,000 22,000,000 - 22,000,000
237,488,063 237,547,411 212,398,509 25,148,902
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17. EXEE
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16. Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)
(c) Fair values

All financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2021
and 2020. The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market interest rate.

17. Capital Management

For the purpose of capital disclosure, the capital structure of the
PMSA consists of its accumulated surplus.

The PMSA'’s capital management objectives are:

(@) to ensure the PMSA’s ability to continue as a going concern;
and

(b) to achieve the PMSA’s goals.

The PMSA regularly reviews and manages its capital in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets so as to ensure adequacy for both operational
and capital needs. The capital management strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.
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18.Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from
Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the PMSA'’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
PMSA’s statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

HEAE
Lease liabilities

BT
HK$

BURE
Government loan
BT

HK$

R2020F481H At 1 April 2020

METEZHERELE . Changes from financing cash flows: 6,806,977 22,000,000 28,806,977

STREZFE Loan interest paid — (243,320) (243,320)
BNHEEMS 2 ERILD Capital element of lease rentals paid (4,633,455) (4,633,455)
ENEERE ZHEEHY Interest element of lease rentals paid (54,063) — (54,063)

2,119,459 21,756,680 23,876,139

Hit 25 Other changes:

BERFEL Loan interest expense — 243,320 243,320

HEBERNE Interest on lease liabilities 54,063 = 54,063

72021837318 At 31 March 2021 2,173,522 22,000,000 24,173,522

HERE BUR &R &5t
Lease liabilities ~ Government loan Total
BT BT BT

HK$ HK$ HK$

R2019F4A1H At 1 April 2019 — 22,000,000 22,000,000

BMEEEHHLRESH :  Changes from financing cash flows:

SAEFFE Loan interest paid — (262,607) (262,607)
ERHEERS 2 BREED Capital element of lease rentals paid (4,607,329) — (4,607,329)
BENEERE Z2FIEHS Interest element of lease rentals paid (112,023) - (112,023)

(4,719,352 21,737,393 17,018,041

Hith# g Other changes:

rFEERRAZEERRE Recognition of lease liabilities during

the year 11,414,306 — 11,414,306

EFHFEZH Loan interest expense — 262,607 262,607
fﬁ S8ENE Interest on lease liabilities 112,023 - 112,023
R202063A31 B At 31 March 2020 6,806,977 22,000,000 28,806,977
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19. BB ERFRERERNEE
SR EZER
BEARHMAGERARAFEYRE
BB RAEARH BERENIRBHZEE

19. Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards Issued But
Not Yet Effective for the Year

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the current accounting

7] M AR R
THRIE -

BIEA R RE R BERMN

year and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant to

the PMSA.
BRI TR 2R R A4 RERE HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
F175% [EHEN Amendments'
BB TSR AR TRA B S HE R Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
EIFIEFTA HKFRS 3
ERMEHREERE KEHFEEHE Amendments to Sales or Contribution of Assets between
1058 R BB R4 NAESEEDR HKFRS 10 and an Investor and its Associate or Joint
BIIZE2855% 2 57T A ¥CEELRE HKAS 28 Venture#
BN
EBUGHRELEDE 20198 MR FBSH Amendments to Covid-19 — Related Rent Concessions?
1657 2 18R] A HEACHEE HKFRS 16
e
BEGEERIFE16 WE - BERK Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
ZIERTAR H—1E#tER HKAS 16 before Intended Use?
BRI TSR
pi=p
EASRTEREI7H BBRAH BT Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
ZAERTAR B H)Z K A2 HKAS 37 Contract?
ERPBEHREER Yy BEMGEHREE Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
(EEIES BIA2018F & HKFRSs 20202
2020 2 FJE
2
T R2023F 1 A1 Bk 2 & A 2 St EARI AR 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
2 pA20229F1 A1 Ak 2 & FIA 2 &5 AR AR 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
3 202296 R1H 2R 2T HIR AR 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2022
4 EREEE « To be determined

EERBEHELHI MEEFTNEEY
BREEAREFBGHERNERTE
HEERVBHRRTHERNERELS
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The PMSA anticipates that the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs and HKASs will not have a material effect on the
amounts recognized in the PMSA’s financial statements.
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BEEEEEXx RARBRER

Licensing regime for
professionalism and better
service quality

F8= VISION

HORABTBYREERNERN
BE fmRZELE -

To promote the professionalism and
quality of the property management
industry to make Hong Kong a better

place for living. ﬁ'pﬁf M ISSION

REVMFEEERY » BITHEN®
5 B REFRKFHFTEA
WE Btk SEBNERRIHD
BinlE - M EEREERE -
To regulate property management
services; set standards for
integrity, competence and
professionalism of the industry;
encourage a culture of learning;
and promote synergy among
- stakeholders for the continuous
4 development of the profession.
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